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Board of City Commissioners and
Management
City of Dodge City

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dodge City, Kansas, for the year
ended December 31, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated August 30, 2010.
Professional standards require that we provide vou with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to
you dated November 19, 2009. Professional standards also require that we communicate to
you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used by the entity are described in Note A to the
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during 2009. We noted no transactions entered into by
the entity during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements
in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. The most sensitive estimates in the
financial statements are collectability of receivables, depreciation expense and useful lives
of capital assets, and accounts payable. Accounts receivable are turned over to a collection
agency when they are sixty days past due, and they are written off when that process is
completed. Depreciation expense is calculated on the straight line basis using estimated
useful lives. These lives have been established by type of asset and are used consistently
from year to year. Accounts payable are based upon invoices for purchases to which the
City had committed before the end of the year, and which were paid after year-end. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain
financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements is
the disclosure of long-term liabilities in Note I to the financial statements.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. In the attached schedule are material adjustments to the
financial statements which were proposed to management. They have been accepted and
posted.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management
as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our
satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We
are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated August 30, 2010.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on
those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there
were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the
entity’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our
professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.
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This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of
the City of Dodge City, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specitied parties.

Very truly yours,

Konsody MeKeo & Company LAY



City of Dodge City
Adjusting Journal Entries
December 31, 2009

Account Description WIP Ref Debit Credit
5007
e E

Transfer rorﬁ other undS ‘ . 103,525.08

115-0000-391-0500

115-5320-453-4103  Buildings 21,811.08

353-0000-470-9808  Transfer to other funds 21,811.05

353-0000-470-9809  Transfer to other funds 103,525.08

115-0000-391-0501  Other 21,811,085

115-0000-321-0501  Other 103,625.08

353.0000-149-0100  Deferred bond issuance costs 21,811.05

353-0000-470-3903  Other funds/accounts 103,525.08
Totai 250,672.26 250,672.26
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 27 ] G/L

353-0000-470-5101  Interest 706,692.16

353-0000-214-0000  Accrued interest payable 296,692.16
Totat 296,692.16 296,692.16

Gil.

145-0000-102-0132  SEC Project - cost of issuance 21,614.08

115-0000-470-5500  Cost of issuance 103,625.08

352-0000-391-0500  Transfer from other funds 425,736.13

115-8320-453-4202  Engineering-design 125,736.13

353-0000-102-0132  SEC rev bond - cost of issuance 21,814.08

353-0000-149-0100  Deferred bond issuance costs 103,525.08
Total 251,075.2% 251,075.29
4103
T onalipayabl

448-3030-430-4204  Street construction 120,983.91

520-4220-442-2502  Repairs & maint-eguipment 41,030.43

522-4220-442-2002  Engineering & design 41,097.14

540-4400-444-2003  Other professional fees 17,626.38

448-0000-201-0000  Accounts payable 120,983.814

520-0000-201-0000  Accounts payable 41,030.43

522-0000-201-0000  Accounts payable 41.097.14

540-0000-201-0000  Accounts payable 17,526.38

Total 220,637.86 220,637.86




Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 32 _ _ 6005

to adjust.franchise 1ax receivable to-actual. .

001-0000-117-0000
001-0000-222-0000
001-0000-314-0200
001-0000-314-0300
001-0000-314-0400
001-0000-222-0000
001-0000-314-0100
004-0000-314-0200
001-0000-314-0300
001-0000-314-0400
001-0000-314-0400
Total

Franchise fees receivable
Deferred revenue
Franchise tax-natural gas
Franchise tax-cable tv
Franchise tax-electric
Ceferred revenue
Franchise tax-telephone
Franchise tax-natural gas
Franchise tax-cable tv
Franchise {ax-electric
Franchise tax-glectric

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 33 5007

116-0000-391-0501
301-0000-104-0000
301-7000-470-9809
116-0000-104-0000
301-0000-220-0000

301-7000-470-3809
Total

Other

Pooled cash & investment - GO B&! Fund
Transfer to cther funds

Pooled cash & invesiment

Bond premium

Transfer to other funds

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 36 5006

1103-5310-453-9902
116-0000-104-C000
110-0000-104-0000

116-0000-391-0000
Totat

'301-7000-470-5100
301-0000-214-0000
Toftal

353-0000-470-5900
353-0000-149-0100
Total

522-0000-364-0700
522-0000-129-0102
Total

Adjusting Journal En

135-0000-362-C100
435-0000-222-0000
Total

ransfer to other funds

Pooled cash & investment

Pooled cash & invesiment - Sales Tax Fund
Transfer from other funds

5003
Bonded"c'}é'b“l .
Accrued interest payable
5032
Amortization
Deferred bond issuance costs
6040.6
Loan proceeds
Loans receivabie - other
tries JE# 58 4106

Insurance recoveries
Deferred Revenue

113,213.67
145,010.43
42,012.89
48,396.15
54,803.99

145,213.03

44,654.85

47,288,365

50,539.87

54,067.23

62,673.80

404,437.13 404,437 .13
147,752.46
147,752.46
57,650.40

147,762.46

57,850.40

147,752.46

353,355,32 353,355,348
89,599 28
§9,599.26

89,599.26

£9,509,26

179,198.52 179,198.52
24,475.00

24,475.00

24,475.00 24,475.00
23,914.00

23,914.00

23,974.00 23,914.00
464,526.26

464,526.96

464,576.26 464,526.26
226,053.30

229,053.30

329,053.30 229,053.30
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and
City Commissioners
Dodge City, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dodge City, Kansas, as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the
Dodge City Housing Authority. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the Dodge City Housing Authority, is based on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and the Kansas Municipa! Audit Guide. Those standards and guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and. significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Dodge City, Kansas, as of December 31, 2009, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund and the Sales Tax Fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 30, 2010, on our consideration of the City of Dodge City, Kansas' internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City of Dodge City, Kansas' basic financial statements. The
combining fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements of the City of Dodge City, Kansas. The combining fund financial
statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Keonnedy MeKeo & Compang LLP

August 30, 2010
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CITY OF DODGE CITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
December 31, 2009

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Dodge City’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2009. 1t shouid
be read in conjunction with the City's basic financial statements, listed in the table of
contents.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide
statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. These
provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements follow the government-wide
statements. For governmental activities, these statements tell how the services of the City
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial
statements report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements
by providing information about the City’s most significant funds.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is this: “Is the City as
a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?” The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and
about its activities in a way that helps provide answers to this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and the changes in them. The net assets
represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are one way to measure
the financial position of the City. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's netf assets
are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors,
such as changes in the property tax base, and economic conditions at the state and local
tevel must also be considered when assessing the overall financial health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Assets and in the Statement of Activities, the information is divided
into three kinds of activities:

« Governmental activities—Many of the City's basic services are reported here,
including general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation and
community services. Property taxes, sales tax, franchise fees, service charges and
fees, other types of governmental revenues and taxes, and federal and state grants
finance most of these activities.

« Business-type-activites—The City charges a fee to residents to cover the cost of
utility services it provides. These services are water, wastewater, solid waste and
drainage utilities.

« Component units—The City includes three separate legal entities in its report: the
Dodge City Public Library, the Dodge City-Ford County Development Corporation,
and the Dodge City Housing Authority. Although legally separate, these component
units are important because of their relationship with the City.

3



USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (continued)

To assist in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is
given. Of particular interest is the format that is significantly different from a typical
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. The expenses are
listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported to the right.
The result is a net (expense)/revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the
relative financial burden of each of the functions on the City’'s taxpayers. It aiso identifies
how much each function draws from the general revenues and how much it is self-financing
through fees and grants.

Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the City’s major funds follows in this discussion. The fund financial
statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the City as a
whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law or by contract. However,
the City Commission establishes many other funds to help control and manage money for
particular purposes, or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain
taxes, grants, and other money. The City's two kinds of funds — governmental and
proprietary — use different accounting approaches.

e Governmental funds—Many of the City's basic services are reported in
governmental funds. The focus is on how money flows into and out of those funds
and on the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's
general government operations and the basic-services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. A
reconciliation between the governmental funds reported here and the overall
governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets is provided.

o Proprietary funds—The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Internal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various
functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its vehicle and
equipment maintenance activities. Proprietary funds are reported using the same
accounting approach that all activities use in the Statement of Net Assets and in the
Statement of Activities.

Since the Enterprise funds use the same accounting approach in al statements, no
reconciliation is necessary among the statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Government-Wide Statements — Overview

The City's overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized
as follows based on the information included in the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2008 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008
Current and other assets $ 68436182 $ 38752112 $ §77358% § 7,769,860 $ 78209771 § 46,521,972
Capital assets 99,834,433 97,128,037 45 649 442 45.092,049 145,483 875 142,218,086
Totat assets 168,270,615 135,878,149 55,423,031 52,861,909 223693646 188,740,058
Long-term liabilities 64,759,113 24,964 678 24,942,090 23,874,007 84,701,203 48,838,685
Other tiabilities 3,148,337 1,873,613 667,867 454,132 3,816,204 2,327,745
Deferred revenue 6.422 592 6,114,470 - - 6,422,592 6,114,470
Total liabilities 74,330,042 32,652,761 25 609,957 24328139 99,939,999 87,280,900
Net assets: :

Invested in capitai
assets net of

related debt 71,143,445 75,622,863 20,707,351 21,218,043 91,850,796 96,740,906
Restricted 12,888,661 23,324,348 1,677,591 1,739,569 14,666,252 25,063,917
Unrestricted 9,808 467 4,078,177 7,428,132 5.576,158 17,236,589 2,654,335

Totai netassets  $_ 93940573 §$.102,925388 §_20.813074 §..280533.770 3 123753647 5. 131,499,158

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, net assets changed as follows:

Governmental activities Business-tvpe aclivities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008

Beginning net assets $ 102825388 $ 108,061,961 $ 28533770 $ 27,397,251 § 131,459,158 § 135,459,212
increase {decrease} in

net assets . (8,984,815) (6,136,573) 1.279.304 1,136,519 (7,705,511) {4.000,054)
Ending net assets §..93.940573 $.1029252388 %..29813.074 §._ 28533770 § 123753647 $ 131.459.158

Governmental assets increased because Revenue Bonds have been issued for the
construction of the Special Events Center, but funds have not yet been expended.
Consequently, the long term liabilities increased because of the issuance of the Revenue
Bonds. Cash that the City had on hand were used to prepay Revenue Bonds that were
previously issued in 1998. Capital assets increased as a result of construction in progress.

Assets, liabilities and ending net assets are comparable between 2009 and 2008 for the
business-type activities.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE {CONTINUED)

Government-Wide Statements —~ Overview (continued)

Governmental activities Business-type aclivities Total primary government
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenue:
Program revenue:
Charges for services § 2035469 § 2519873 $ 9182337 § 10,159,825 $ 12117806 § 12679498
Operating granis 1,667,123 1,652,637 826,702 845,613 2,493,825 2,498,250
Capital grants 1,394,367 1,389,892 2,230,472 705,555 3,624,839 2,095,447
General revenue:
Property taxes, ievied
for general purposes 5,398,926 5,590,762 - - 5,398,926 5,590,762
Property taxes and speciai '
assessments levied

for debt service 2,430,739 2,090,179 - - 2,430,739 2,090,179

Sales {axes 8,896,347 9,046,577 - - 8,896,347 8,046,577
Franchise taxes 1,470,864 1,767,830 - - 1,470,864 1,767,930
Grants and contributions 94,029 88,339 - - 94,029 98,339
Gain on assets - . (5,003 - {5.003) -
[nvesiment earnings 404,274 879,538 141,205 263,689 545,479 1,143,227
Transfers 326,501 340,548 (1,365,392) (1,327,810 {1,068,891} {987,262}
Miscellaneous 165,334 503,516 - - 165,334 503,516
Total revenue 25,184,073 25,879,591 10,980,321 10,646,872 36,164,394 36,526,483

Program expenses:
General government 2,118,748 1,786,152 - - 2,118,748 1,786,152
Public safety 8,392,530 7,758,375 - - 8,392,530 7,756,375
Public works 1,729,416 4,626,928 - - 1,729,416 4,626,928
Culture and recreation 9,070,299 4,978,533 - - 9,070,286 4,978,633
Cormmunity services 1,111,371 1,104,007 - - 1,111,371 1,404,007
Indirect depreciation 9,702,401 9,655,569 - “ 9,702,401 9,655,569
Interest on fong-term debt 2,044,125 1,108,600 - - 2,044 125 1,108,600
Water - - 3,579,772 3,514,767 3,579,772 3,514,767
\Wastewater - - 4,169,650 4,218,250 4,169,650 4,218,250
Solid waste - . 1,640,242 1,626,650 1,640,242 1,626,650
Drainage - - 311,353 150,686 311,353 150,686
Total expenses 34,168,890 31,016,164 8,704,017 9,510,353 43 869,907 40,526,517
Increase {decrease) in

net assets $.(8.984817) & (5136573 % 1.279.304 % __ 1136519 .. (7705513 $._.(4.000054)

Culture and Recreation expenses increased due to expenses associated with infrastructure
at the casino to be financed through special assessments on the casino. Public Works
expenses decreased due to the completion of major road construction projects.

Governmental Activities

The most significant governmental activities are general government, public safety, public
works, culture and recreation and community services. The main sources of revenue are
property taxes, sales tax, franchise fees, charges for services, other governmental revenue
and taxes, and operating grants and contributions. Total governmental revenues for the
year were $25,184,073, and total expenses were $34,168,890.

The following charts reflect a comparison among all the governmental sources of revenue
and expense categories for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and
2005 based on the information included in the government-wide financial statements.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities (continued)

Governmental Activities - Revenues
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities

The business-type activities of the City are the water, wastewater, solid waste, and
drainage utilities. These activities derive most of their revenue from charges for services.
Total business-type program revenues are $12,238,511 and operating expenses are
$9,701,017.

The charts below compare program revenues and changes in net assets for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 based on the information included
in the government-wide financial statements.

Business-Type Activities - Program Revenues
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THE CITY’S FUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities

As the City completed the year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$57,992,830, as reflected in the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. This balance
represents an increase of $27,166,240 (88%) from last year's ending balance. This increase
in fund balance is primarily in the Special Events Center Project Fund due to the issuance of
bonds for the project. The decrease in the Sales Tax Fund is because some Revenue
Bonds were paid off, prior to the issuance of new ones and some construction at the Special
Events Center has progressed. Cash balances in other governmental funds remained
steady.

A comparison of fund balances based on information included in the fund financial
statements is presented below:

Governmental Fund Balances
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Following is an analysis of General Fund and Sales Tax Fund revenue and expenditures
compared to the previous year:

The percentage of revenue that funded the General Fund in 2009 is sales tax at 33%,
property tax at 22%, franchise fees at 11%, licenses, charges and rentals at 13%, fines at
10% with other revenues representing the remainder of the funding. General Fund revenue
was down from 2008 by 2%. This decrease was from sales tax and investment income.

Property tax collections remain very stable. The chart below lists the percentage of property
tax collected compared to the amount that was levied.



THE CITY’S FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities (continued)

% of Property Tax Collected plus

% of Property Tax Collected compared Delinquent amount compared to the
Year to the amount Levied amount Levied
2004 98.95% 101.08%
2005 97.05% 101.73%
2006 97.41% 99.63%
2007 96.41% 97.92%
2008 96.73% 99.49%
2009 100.18% 102.14%

The Sales Tax Fund is funded primarily by sales tax and partially by user fees and charges.
The overall revenue in the sales tax fund decreased from 2008 by 8.2% because of
investment earnings. Sales tax decreased slightly by 1.4%

Governmental Activities - Revenues
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THE CITY’S FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities (continued)

Governmental Activities - Expenditures
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The governmental funds included in the published budget are the General Fund, Special
Liability, Library, Library Employee Benefits, Building, Sales Tax, Convention and Visitors,
Special Streets and Highways, Special Park and Recreation, Special Alcohol and Drug,
Alcohol and Drug Safety Acfion, All 4 Fun, and GO Bond and Interest Funds. Budgeted
business-type funds are as follows: Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste and Drainage Utility
Funds. The internal service funds are the Vehicle Maintenance Fund and Medical
Insurance Fund.

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for
previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. Budgets
were amended for the foliowing funds:

Original Amended

budget budget
Sales Tax Fund $ 2,769,851 § 16,293,201
All 4 Fun - 223,300
Medical Insurance Fund 2,310,489 2,330,489
Bond & Interest 2,769,385 2,780,385
Capita! Improvement Fund 403,000 453,000
Drainage Fund 589,355 650,000
Transportation 248,716 270,000
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The following charts show expenditures by category compared with the published budget for
the current year.

General Fund Comparison to Budget 2009
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City has invested $145.4 million in capital assets (net of depreciation). Approximately
69% of this investment is related to governmental activities and includes infrastructure,
buildings, equipment and land. Governmental capital assets have increased 2.8%, while
capital assets held for business-type activities have increased 1.2% from the previous year.
fC'Tlipital assets held by the City at the end of the current and previous year is summarized as
ollows:

Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land 3 5582 & 5417 & 1,514 % 1520 % 7,086 § 6,937
Buildings and

improvements 17,309 17,716 2,308 2,726 19,617 20,442
Machinery and

aquipment 2,696 2,680 1837 1,524 4,333 4,104
Infrastructure 61,646 67,252 36,344 35,913 97,990 103,165
Water rights - - 3,347 3,409 3,347 3,409
Construction in

progress 12,602 4161 500 - 13,102 4,181

Totals $ 99835 $. 97126 $ 45850 $. 45092 §. 145485 § 142218

The City of Dodge City has a five-year capital improvement program, a five year municipal
equipment replacement program and a street program. In each program capital
improvements are completed annually, equipment is scheduled for replacement, and street
improvements are completed annually. Most of the additions to the capital assets in the
governmental funds are a result of improvements scheduled during the year. Vehicles were
replaced according to the schedule in the Police, Parks and Recreation and Public Works
Depariments.  Street improvements added included construction of US 50 turn lanes and
intersection with Comanche Street and Comanche Street Extension west of US 50 and
reconstruction of the airport access road. The restroom and concession building was
completed at Cavalier Field and 3 LED signs were purchased for the entrance of Legends
Park, the Civic Center and Dodge City Raceway park. Capital additions for the business-
type activities included drainage improvements, water line and sewer line extension to the
Special Events Center and Casino site, a sewer line from Hi Street along 14" and equipment
in the Sanitation Department.

Additional information about the City's capital assets is presented in Note F of the financial
statements.

Long-Term Liabilities

At the end of the current year, the City had long-term liabilities related to governmental
activities of $65,132,983. This includes $23,335,000 in general obligation bonds, $565,000
temporary notes, $32,043 in capital lease obligations, $397,500 in notes payable, $503,440
in compensated absences, and $40,300,000 in revenue bonds. General obligation bonds in
the amount of $6,280,000 were issued in 2009 for infrastructure improvements at the Casino
site. These will be repaid through special assessments from the benefiting property owners.
$40,300,000 of revenue bonds were issued to fund the construction of the Special Events
Center.
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Long-Term Liabilities {continued)

The total amount of debt related to business-type aclivities at the end of the current year was
$25,031,063, which was an increase of $1,074,324 from the previous year of $23,956,739.
This increase was due to $2,750,000 in temporary notes issued in the Water Fund.

The debt position of the City is summarized below and is more fully analyzed in Note | of the
financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

Governmental activities Business-type aclivities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation bonds $ 23,335,000 § 20850000 § - % 615,000 $ 23335000 § 21,465,000
Capital lease obligations 32,043 47,178 - - 32,043 47,178
Notes payable 397,500 427 500 - - 397,500 427,500
Compensated absences 503,44C 532,798 88,973 82,732 592,413 815,530
- Revenue bonds 40,300,060 3,640,000 17,015,000 17,925,000 57,315,000 21,565,000
Other obligations 565,000 - 7,527,090 5,334,007 8,492,090 5,334,007
Totals §_ 66132883 3 25497476 $.25031063 523956739 $..00164046 §_ 49454215

RELEVANT CURRENT ECONOMIC FACTORS, DECISIONS AND CONDITIONS

Expenses, such as employee costs, utilities, and commodities continue to increase while the
revenue sources have remained fairly flat. The City continues to minimize increase in
expenses while still offering quality services. Revenues have remained very stable. The
General Fund fund balance decreased slightly from 2008.

The City began the reconstruction of two of the City's major streets, 14" Avenue and Wyatt
Farp Boulevard. Both projects were complete in the first half of 2009. The Federal
government through its transportation program has allocated funds to the City for the Wyatt
Farp project. The City will continue to maintain and upgrade its guality of life and historical
buildings and projects.

A %% sales tax was authorized for the completion of four projects: construction of a motor
sports race track; construction of a softball/baseball complex and upgrading of other athletic
fields in the community; air conditioning the City's Civic Center; and construction of a new
special events center. The first three of the four projects are complete and operational. The
City is enhancing the original projects and has added onto these facilities with additional
sports fields to appeal to all types of sports venues. The fourth project, the new special
events center began construction in late 2009 and will be complete and opened in early
2011. The Kansas state legislature approved legislation that allowed voters in Ford County
to vote whether or not they wanted a destination casino. The voters approved the destination
casino. The first phase of the Casino construction is complete and opened in December,
2009. The casino floor is owned by the State of Kansas and a small portion of the Revenue
generated comes back to the City of Dodge City. This is the first casino in Kansas under the
newly adopted legislation. The new special events center is located adjacent o the casino.
The addition of a destination casino and the potential growth in a relatively short period of
time will present many opportunities and additional tourism in Dodge City as well as many
challenges to the infrastructure and housing of the City.
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CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide various interested parties with a general overview
of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City
Clerk and Finance Officer, 806 Second Avenue, Dodge City, Kansas 67801,

The separately issued financial statements of the component units may be obtained from
administrative offices as follows:

Dodge City Public Library
1001 Second Avenue
Dodge City, KS 67801

Dodge City/Ford County Development Corporation
311 W. Spruce
Dodge City, KS 67801

Dodge City Housing Authority

407 E. Bend
Dodge City, KS 67801
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS






ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Property taxes receivable
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Inventories
Notes receivable
Prepaid insurance
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets, net
Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payabie
Accried interest payable
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Temporary note premium
Compensated absences payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total fiabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital asseis,
net of related debt
Restricted (expendable):
Debt service
Construction
Projects
Housing Authority
Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financiat statements.

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2009

Primary government

Governmental Business-type Component
activities activities Total units

$ 5420692 $ 4,152,367 $ §,573,089 $ 1,203,948

- - - 543,874

6,193,539 - 6,193,539 -

1,601,063 489,608 2,090,671 121,978

137,286 - 137,286 -

{354) 354 - .

12,333 179,662 191,995 23,254

- - - 184,760

- - - 11,364

53,651,751 4,527 828 58,179,579 .

06,834,433 45,649,442 145,483,875 9,177 629

1,419,872 423,770 1,843,642 -

$168,270,615 $ 55,423,031 $223,693,646 $ 11,356,797

$ 2,071,126 $ 371,081 $ 2442187 $ 102,579

141,061 27,985 168,046 -

432,710 133,387 566,097 575,234

- 36,642 36,642 .

6,422,592 - 6,422,592 69,654

- 9,819 9,819 -

503,440 88,973 592,413 80,270

2,300,718 1,098,657 3,399,375 -

652,458,395 23,843,433 86,301,828 762,000

74,330,042 25,609,957 99,939,999 1,589,737

71,143,445 20,707,351 51,850,796 8,415,629

- 1,677,591 1,677,591 -

236,132 - 236,132 -

12,752,529 - 12,752,529 -

- - - 248,917

- - - 166,545

9,808,467 7,428,132 17,236,589 935,869

93,940,573 20,813,074 123,753,647 9,767,060

$168,270,615 $ 55,423,031 $223,693,646 $ 11,356,787
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended December 31, 2009

Program revenue

Operating Capital
Charges for grants and grants and
Functions/programs Expenses services contributions contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activifies:
General government $ 2,118,748 $ 80,126 3 - 3 4,045
Public safety 8,392,530 1,562,222 55,734 1,314,425
Public works 1,729,418 182,756 843,102 75,897
Culture and recreation 9,070,299 1,016,901 85,204 .-
Community services 1,111,371 93,464 683,083 -
[ndirect depreciation 9,702,401 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 2,044,125 - - -
Total governmental activities 34,168,890 2,935,469 1,667,123 1,394,367
Business-type activities:
Water 3,679,772 3,576,361 247,948 574,697
Wastewater 4,169,650 3,774,545 578,545 1,636,697
Solid waste 1,640,242 1,644,645 209 -
Drainage 311,363 186,786 - 19,078
Total business-type aclivities §,701,017 9,182,337 826,702 2,230,472

Total primary government $ 43,869,907 $ 12,117,806 $ 2493825 $ 3,624,83¢

Component units $ 3,583,928 3 885,020 $ 1,198,286 $ 341,023

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes and special assessments, levied for debt service
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
(Gain on assets
Investment earnings
Transfers
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Changes in net assets

Primary government

Governmental Business-type Component
activities activilies Total units

$ (2,034,577) 3 - $ (2,034577) & -
{5,460,148) - (5,460,149) -
(627,661) - (627,661) -
(7,968,184) - (7,968,194) -
(334,824) - (334,824) -
(9,702,401) - {9,702,401) -
(2,044,125} - (2,044,125) -
(28,171,931 - (28,171,831) -
- 919,234 919,234 -

- 1,720,137 1,720,137 .

- 4,612 4,612 -

- (105,489) (105,489) -

- 2,538,494 2,538,494 -
(28,171,831} 2,538,494 (25,633,437) -
- - - (1,169,590)

5,398,926 - 5,398,926 -
2,430,739 - 2,430,739 -
8,896,347 - 8,896,347 -
1,470,964 - 1,470,964 -
94,029 - 94,029 ;

- (5,003} (5,003) -

404,274 141,206 545,479 18,776
326,501 {1,395,392) (1,068,891) 1,068,891
165,334 - 165,334 32,885
19,187,114 {1,259,190) 17,927,924 1,120,552
{8,984,817) 1,279,304 (7,705,513) (49,038}
102,925,390 28,533,770 131,459,160 9,816,098
$ 63,940,573 3 29,813,074 $123,753,647 $ 9,767,080




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2009

General Sales {ax
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,166,315 $ -
Property taxes receivable 2,780,565 -
Sales taxes receivable 346,099 346,099
Due from other governments - -
Other receivables 525,724 -
Due from other funds - 178,462
Restricted cash and investments - 12,628,227
Total assets $ 4,818,703 $ 13,152,788
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable % 633,812 $ 391,566
Payrofi fiabilities 130,654 1,775
Due to other funds - -
Deferred revenue 2,780,565 -
Total liabilities 3,545,031 393,341
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 5,503 3,756,980
Deht service - -
Relending - .
Endowment - -
Construction - -
Projects - 9,002,487

Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditures 1,268,169 -
Special revenue funds :
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditures - -
Undesignated -
Capital projects funds
Undesignated - -

Total fund balances 1,273,672 12,768,447

Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 4,818,703 $ 13,152,788

The accompanying nctes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Special events Special events Other Total
GO beond center center governmental governmental
and interest revenue bonds project fund funds funds
§ - $ - $ - $ 4,241,806 $ 5,408,121
1,892,371 - - 1,520,603 6,193,539
- - - - 692,198
- - 137,286 137,286
- . - 383,141 608,865
- - . - 178,462
399,655 3,859,247 36,294,236 470,386 53,651,751
$ 2,292,026 $  3,859247 $ 36,204,236 $ 6,753,222 $ 67,170,222
$ - $ - $ 591,812 3 442792 $ 2,069,982
- - - 7,365 139,794
- - - 178,816 178,816
1,892,371 - - 2,125,864 6,798,800
1,892,371 - 591,812 2,754,837 9,177,392
- . - 13,602 3,776,065
399,655 3,859,247 - - 4,258,802
- - - 76,584 76,584
- - - 100,000 100,000
. - - 236,132 236,132
- - 35,702 424 - 44,704,911
- - . - 1,268,169
. - - 2,554,689 2,554,689
- - - 956,278 956,278
- - - 61,100 681,100
399,655 3,858,247 35,702,424 3,998,385 57,992,830
$ 2,292,026 $ 3,859,247 $ 36,204,236 $ 6,753,222 $ 67,170,222







CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2009

Total fund balances on the balance sheet $ 57,992,830

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because of the following:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financia!
resources and therefore are not reported in the fund financial
statements. 99,834,433

Other long-term assets are nof availabte to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the fund financial
statements or they are reported as deferred. 1,419,872

Certain fiabilities are not required to be accrued in the fund financial
statements. (432,710)

Only the current portion of compensated absences is shown as
an expenditure in the fund financial statements. {503,440)

Economic development revolving loans are considered deferred
revenue in the fund financial statements. 376,208

Long-term liabitities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the fund financial statements. {64,759,113)

internai service funds are used by management to charge the
costs of certain activities, such as vehicle maintenance,
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service fund are inciuded in governmental activities in the

statement of net assets. 12,494
Rounding. (1)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 93,940,573

19



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2009

General Sales tax
Revenue:
Taxes $ 8,876,303 § 4,961,967
Intergovernmental 150,864 -
Licenses, fees and permits 362,306 -
Charges for services 892,483 57,011
Rentals 249,553 6,620
Fines and forfeifures 1,136,837 -
Investment earnings 169,102 179,024
Miscellaneous 73,938 -
Total revenue 11,811,486 5,204,622
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,410,137 -
Pubiic safety 7,863,837 -
Public works 1,331,358 -
Culture and recreation 2,442 615 4. 412 550
Community services 449,349 -
Debt service:
Principal - -
interest and commissions - -
Total expenditures 13,467 206 4,412,550
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures {1,585,810) 792,072
Other financing sources {uses):
Bond issue proceeds - -
Transfers in 1,318,377 31,321
Transfers out {503,625) (7,979,007}
Transfers to component units - -
Total other financing
sources and uses 812,752 (7,947 686)
Net change in fund
balances {773,058) {7,155,614)
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,048,730 19,915,061
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,273,672 $ 12,759,447

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the basic financial statements.
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Special events Special events Other Total
GO bend center center governmental governmental
and interest revenue bonds project fund funds funds

$ 2,430,739 5 $ - $ 1,927,967 $ 18,196,876
- - - 2,928,231 3,079,095

- - - - 362,306

- - 230,659 1,180,053

- - - - 256,173

- - - - 1,136,937

- 83 22,250 33,815 404,274

. - - 204,874 278,912

2,430,739 83 22,250 5,325,546 24,894,726
146,210 - 626,455 2,182,802

. . - 1,688,917 9,552,754

- - . 4,712,585 6,043,943

- 1,024,908 3,666,637 5,087,411 16,634,202

- - - 1,154,638 1,603,987

1,988,525 - - 3,640,000 5,628,525
770,218 1,018,375 - 88,277 1,876,870
2,804,953 2,043,284 3,666,637 16,998,363 43,523,083
(474,214) (2,043,201) (3,644,387) (11,672,817) (16,628,357)
5,086,375 40,371,721 - - 45,468,096
125,000 4,877,538 39,346,811 12,311,753 58,008,800
{(4,802,460) {39,346,811) - {3,881,504) {56,613,407)
- - - (1,068,892) (1,068,892)

418,915 5,902,448 39,346,811 7,261,357 45,794,597
(55,299) 3,859,247 35,702,424 {4,411,460) 27,166,240
454,954 - - 8,409,845 30,826,590

$ 399,655 § 3,858,247 $ 35,702,424 $ 3,998,385 $ 57,992,830







CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended December 31, 2009

Net change in fund balances, fotal governmental funds $ 27,166,240

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because of the following:

Capital assets:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period. 2,559,049
Contributed capital for donated assets is a revenue in the statement of activities. 157,040

L.ong-term tiahilities;
Long-term liabilities are reported in the statement of net assets. This is the amount

by which proceeds exceeded repayments. (39,808,571)
Bond issue costs are included in expenditures in the fund financial statements. 1,171,072
Amortization of deferred bond issue costs is an expense in the statement of activities. (62,207}
Accrued interest is an expense in the statement of activities. {167,255)
Capital lease payments are recorded as expenditures in the fund financial statements. 15,135

Other:

Principal received on economic development revoiving loans provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, and loans made are included in expenditures.

This is the amount by which loans made exceeded principal repayments. {37,152)
Only the current portion of compensated absences is shown as an expenditure in the
fund financial statements. 29,643

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities,
such vehicle maintenance, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the

internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. (6,810)
Rounding. (1)
Change in net assets of governmental aclivities $  (8,984,817)
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ASSETS

Current assefs:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent asseis:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Utility systems
Water rights
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Deferred bond issue cosis

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets
LIABIITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Revenue bonds payable
l.oan payable

Total current liabifities

Nancurrent liabilities:
Revenue bonds payabie
Loan payable
Temporary notes payabie
Bond premium
Temporary note premium
Compensated absences payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2008

Business-type activities
Enterprise funds

Water Wastewater
$ 1,028,032 $ 2,087,661
172,128 219,876
179,662 -
1,379,822 2,307,537
3,260,143 1,267,685
351,435 1,145,257
3,318,584 11,699,264
1,987 455 1,414,042
22 669,959 22,082,291
3,542,614 -
48,941 431,539
(9,004,727) {15,576,987)
167,920 255,850
26,342,324 22,698,841
$ 27,722,148 $ 25,006,478
$ 107,357 $ 215,801
14,342 3,347
91,639 41,748
178,462 -
280,500 654,500
163,657 -
835,957 915,396
4,824 000 11,258,000
2,748,433 -
5,015,000 -
10,892 25,650
9,819 -
28,301 13,499
12,636,545 11,295,149
13,472,502 12,210,545
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Business-type activities Governmental
Enterprise funds activities
Drainage internai
Solid waste utility Total service fund
¥ 378,891 3 657,783 $ 4,152,367 12,571
86,855 10,748 489,608 -
178,816 - 178,816 -
- - 178,662 12,333
644 562 668,532 5,000,453 24,804
- - 4,527,828 -
18,200 - 1,514,892 -
54,804 - 15,082,662 -
2,437,352 4,865 5,843,714 62,992
- 1,047,195 45779445 -
- - 3,642,614 -
- 18,078 499,558 -
(1,725,447) {306,272) (26,613,433) (44,625)
- - 423,770 -
794,909 764,866 50,601,040 18,367
$ 1,439,471 $ 1,433,398 $ 55,601,493 43,271
3 30,376 3 17,627 3 371,061 11,143
9,707 589 27,985 1,267
- - 133,387 -
- - 178,462 -
- - 935,000
- - 163,657 -
40,083 18,116 1,808,552 12,410
- - 16,080,000 -
- - 2,748,433 -
- - 5,015,000 -
- - 36,642
- - 9,819 -
46,562 611 88,973 3,800
46,562 511 23,978,867 3,800
86,645 18,727 25,788,419 16,210




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2009

Business-type activities
Enterprise funds

Water Wastewater
NET ASSETS
[nvested in capiial assets,
net of related debt $ 9,882,670 $ 9,264,906
Restricted (expendable):
Debt service 451 654 1,225,937
Unrestricted 3,915,320 2,305,090
Total net assets 14,249,644 12,795,933
Tota! liabilities and net assets $ 27,722,146 $ 25,006,478

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Business-type activities Governmentat

Enterprise funds activities
Drainage Internal
Solid waste utility Total service fund
3 794,909 3 764,866 $ 20,707,351 $ 18,366
- - 1,677,591 -
557,917 649,805 7,428,132 8,685
1,352,826 1,414 671 28,813,074 27,061

$ 1439471 $ 1,433,398 $ 55601,493 3 43,271



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2009

Business-type activities
Enterprise funds

Water Wastewater
Operating revenue:
Charges for services $ 3,676,361 $ 3,774,545
Operating expenses:
Personal services 900,269 433,632
Contractuat services 798,721 2,067,387
Repairs and maintenance 121,542 163,605
Other supplies and expenses 490,414 46,951
Capital outlay 108,113 51,602
Other expense 40,925 29,322
Depreciation 629,601 853,324
Total operaling expense 3,090,585 3635823
Operating income 485,776 138,722
Nonoperating revenue (expense);
QOperating grants 247,948 578,545
Interest and investment revenue 34,642 91,299
interest expense {489,187) {633,827)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (206,597) 136,017
income before other revenue, expenses and fransfers 279,179 274,739
Other revenue, expenses and fransfers:
Capital grants and donations 274,323 640,086
Contributed capital, net 400,374 896,611
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (6,003) -
Transfers out (650,000) (457,230)
Change in net assets 298,873 1,354,208
Total net assets, beginning of year 13,850,771 11,441,727
Total net assets, end of year $ 14,249,644 $ 12,795,933

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of the basic financial statements.
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Business-type activities
Enterprise funds

Drainage

Solid waste utitity
$ 1,644,645 3 186,786
862,083 39,182
440,669 215,917
49 044 -
111,319 1,204
1,549 18,379
6,585 446
168,983 36,225
1,640,242 311,353
4,403 {124,667)
209 -
8,216 7,048
8,425 7,048
12,828 {117,519)
- 18,078
(252,622) {35,540)
(239,794) (133,981)
1,692,620 1,548,662
$ 1,352,826 $ 1,414,671

Governmental
activities
[nternal

Total service fund
$ 9,182,337 $ 279,107

2,235,166 90,721
3,523,694 5,159
324,191 23,446
649,888 140,896
179,643 -
77,288 -
1,688,133 7,733
8,678,003 285,955
504,334 (6,848)
826,702 -
141,205 -
(1,023,614) -
(55,107) -
449 227 (6.848)
914,409 -
1,316,063 38
(5,003) -
(1,395,392) -
1,279,304 (6,810)
28,533,770 33,871
$ 20,813,074 $ 27.061




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2009

Cash flows from operating aclivities:
Receipts from customers
Payments for goods and services
Payments to employees

Net cash provided (used} by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:
Operating grants
Operating subsidies to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:

Capital gran{s and contributions
Proceeds of capital debt
Purchases of capilal assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Bond issuance costs

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Balances, beginning of year

Balances, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total balance, end of year
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Business-type activities
Enterprise funds

Water Wastewater
$ 3,652,371 $ 3,666,282
(1,424,865} (2,189,863)
(914,378) {438,194)
1,213,128 1,038,225
247.948 578,545
{650,000} (457,230}
(402,052) 121,315
274,323 640,086
2,750,000 -
(33,106} {539,870)
(734,917) {947,000)
(411,662) (531,408)
(36,821) -
1,807,817 (1,378,190)
30,579 88,456
2649472 (129,194)
1,638,703 3,484 540
4,288,175 $ 3,355,346
1,028,032 $ 2,087,661
3,260,143 1,267,685
4,288,175 $ 3,355,348



Business-type activities Governmental

Enterprise funds activities
Crainage internal
Solid waste utiity Total service fund

$ 1,644,059 $ 186,388 $ 9,049,100 $ 279,107
(611,699) (242,535) (4,488,962) {176,742)
(870,819) (40,467) (2,263,858) {101,137)
161,541 {96,614) 2,316,280 1,228
209 - 826,702 -
(252,622) {35,540) {1,395,392) -
{252,413) (35,540) {568,690) -
- - 514,409 -
- - 2,750,000 -
{294,871) (66,619) {934,466) -
- - {1,681,817) -
. . (943,068) .
- - (36,821) -
(294,871) (66,619) 68,137 -
8,216 7,048 135,299 -
(377,527) (191,725) 1,951,026 1,228
756,418 849,508 6,729,169 11,343
$ 378,891 3 657,783 $ 8,680,195 b 12,571
$ 378,891 $ 657,783 $ 4,152,367 $ 12,571
- - 4,527,828 -

$ 378,891 $ 657,783 $ 8,680,195 ) 12,671




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2009

Recenciliation of operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
QOperating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
inventories
Accounts and other payables

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business-type activities
Enterprise funds

Water Wastewater
$ 485776 3 138,722
629,601 853,324
{11,126) {108,263)
74,078 -
34,799 154,442
$ 1,213,128 $ 1,038,225




Business-type activities Governmental

Enterprise funds activities
Drainage [nternal
Sofid waste utility Total service fund

3 4,403 $  (124,567) $ 504,334 3 (6,848)
168,983 36,225 1,688,133 7,733
(588) (368) (120,373} -
- - 74,078 {(1.075)
(11,259) (7.874) 170,108 1,418

3 161,541 $ {96,614) $ 2,316,280 3 1,228







CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

Dodge City-
Ford County Dodge City
Dodge City Development Housing
Pubiic Library Corporation Authority Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalents $ 328,279 $ 291,392 $ 674,277 $ 1,293,048
Investments - - 543,874 543,874
Accounts receivable, net - - 73228 73,228
Pledges receivable, net - 48,750 - 48,760
Inventory - - 23,254 23,254
Notes receivable - 125,558 59,202 184,760
Prepaid expense - - 11,354 11,354
Capital assets, net 1,151,441 1,098,218 6,929,969 8,177 629

Total assets $ 1,479,720 $ 1,561,919 $ 8,315,158 $11,356,757

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3 21,244 3 2,112 $ 79,223 3 102,678
Accrued interest payable - 575,234 - 575,234
Compensated absences payabie 53,872 - 26,398 80,270
Deposits and deferred revenue - 12,500 57,154 69,654
{ong-term liabilities:

Due in more than one year - 762,000 - 762,000

Total liabilities 75,116 1,351,846 162,775 1,689,737
NET ASSETS

invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 1,151,441 334,219 6,929,969 8,415,629
Restricted:

Housing Authority - - 248,917 248,917

Temporarily restricted - 166,545 - 166,545
Unrestricied 253,163 {290,691) 973,497 935,969

Total net assats 1,404,604 210,073 8,152,383 9,767,080

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,479,720 3 1,561,919 $ 8,315,158 $11,356,797

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

December 31, 2009
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Dodge City Public Library

Culture and recreation $ 1,129,946 $ 27,454 5 51,568 b 139,487
Depreciation 75,912 - - -
Total Dodge City Public Library 1,205,858 27,454 51,568 139,487
Dodge City-Ford County
Development Corporation
Community services 549,300 72,147 303,847 113,000
Depreciation 2,767 - - -
Total Dodge City-Ford County
Development Corporation 552,067 72,147 303,847 113,000
Dodge City Housing Authority
Operating expenses 1,473,492 785,418 842,880 88,536
Depreciation 362,511 - - -
Total Dodge City Housing
Authority 1,836,003 785,419 842 880 88,538
Total component units $ 3,503,928 3 885,020 $ 1,198,295 3 341,023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

Year ended December 31, 2009

Program revenues

Charges for
Expenses services

Operating
grants and

contributions

Capital
grants and
contributions

General revenues;
Investment earmnings

Transfer from primary government

Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net assefs
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending
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Changes in net assels

Dodge City-
Ford County Dodge City
Dodge City Development Housing
Public Library Corporation Authority Totals

$ (811,437) § - $ . $  (911.437)
(75,912) - - {75,912)
{987,349) - - {987,349)

- (60,306) - (60,308)

- (2,767) - (2,767)

- {63,073) - (63,073)

- - 243,343 243,343

- - {362,511) {362,511)

- - (119,168) (119,168)

{987,349) (63,073) {119,168) {1,169,590)
2,635 2,661 13,480 18,776
1,068,891 - - 1,068,891
12,461 74 20,350 32,885
1,083,987 2,735 33,830 1,120,552
96,638 (60,338) (85,338) {49,038}
1,307,965 270,411 8,237,721 9,816,058

$ 1,404,604 3 210,073 $ 8,152,383 $ 9,767,060




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
GENERAL FUND

Year ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

final budget
Budgeted amounts Actual amounts positive
Original Firal (budgetary basis) {negative)
Budgetary fund balance,
beginning of year $ 1,899,089 3 1,999,088 3 1,399,406 3 (599,683)
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 9,276,439 9,276,439 8,791,025 (485,414)
Intergovernmental 127,800 127,800 150,864 23,064
Licenses, fees and permits 234,000 234,000 362,306 128,306
Charges for services 944,725 944,725 892,483 (52,242)
Rentals 69,000 65,000 249,553 180,553
Fines and forfeitures 1,213,400 1,213,400 1,072,911 (140,489)
tnvestment earnings 450,000 450,000 169,102 {280,898)
Misceltaneous 38,000 38,000 (2,155) (40,155)
Transfers from other funds 1,625,392 1,625,392 1,316,377 (309,015)
Amounts available
for appropriaticn 15,977,845 15,977,845 14,401,872 (1,575,973)
Charges to appropriations
{outflows):
General government 1,392,925 1,392,925 1,416,893 (23,968)
Public safety 8,018,639 8,018,639 7,896,137 22,502
Public works 1,445,227 1,445 227 1,405,638 39,589
Culture and recreation 2,614,737 2,614,737 2,609,580 5,157
Community services 486,317 486,317 477,277 9,040
Transfers to other funds 2,020,000 2,020,000 100,000 1,820,000
Total charges to
appropriations 15,877,845 15,977,845 14,005,625 1,672,320
Budgetary fund balance,
end of year $ - 3 - 3 396,347 $ 396,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
SALES TAX FUND

Year ended December 31, 2009

Variance with
final budget
Budgeted amounts Actual amounts positive
Qriginal Final (budgetary basis) {negative)
Budgetary fund balance,
beginning of year 18,219,482 $ 18,219,482 $ 19,458,598 $ 1,237,116
Resources (infiows):
Taxes 4,780,000 4,780,000 4,980,700 210,700
Charges for services 80,000 80,000 57,011 (22,989)
Rentals - - 6,620 6,620
Investment earnings 500,000 500,000 179,024 {320,978)
Miscelianeous 10,000 14,000 - (10,000)
Transfers from other funds - - 31,321 31,321
Amounts available
for appropriation 23,589,482 23,589,482 24,721,274 1,131,792
Charges to appropriations
{outflows):
Cuiture and recreation 2,769,851 16,293,201 8,085,873 8,207,322
Transfers {o other funds - - 7,879,007 (7,979,007)
Total charges to
appropriafions 2,769,851 16,293,201 16,064,886 228,315
Budgetary fund balance,
end of year $ 20,819,631 $ 7,296,281 3 8,656,388 3 1,360,107

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

Year ended December 31, 2009

General Sales tax
fund fund
Sources/inflows of resources:
Actual amounts available for appropriation from the budgetary
comparison statement $ 14,401,872 $ 24,721,274

Differences, hudget toc GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource,

but is not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes. (1,399,4086) {19,456,598)
Sales tax and other receivable amounts are not a budgetary resource,
but they are revenues for financial reporting purposes. 225,397 (28,733)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources, but
are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (1,316,377) {31,321)
Total revenue as reported on the statement of revenue, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances, governmental funds $ 11,911,486 $ 5,204,622
Uses/cutflows of resources:
Actuat amounts of charges to appropriations from the budgetary
comparison statement $ 14,005,525 $ 16,064,886
Differances, budget {o GAAP:
Current year encumbrances are included as a budgetary outflow. {5,503) (3,756,960}
Prior year encumbrances are not included as a budgetary outflow. 900 83,632
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources, but
are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (100,000) (7,979,007)
Certain transfers were reclassified to expenditures for budgetary purposes. {403,625) -
Rounding {1) (1)
Total expenditures as reporied on the statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances, governmental funds $ 13,497,296 $ 4,412,550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2009

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Dodge City was incorporated under the laws of the State of Kansas and
operates under a City Manager-Commission form of government. The City's major
operations include police and fire protection, water, wastewater, solid waste and

drainage utility services, airport and recreational facilities.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state
and local governments through its pronouncements (statements and interpretations).
Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when
applicable} that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the
City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its
business-type activities, the City has chosen not to do so. The more significant
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

1. Financial reporting entity

These financial statements present the City of Dodge City (the primary
government) and its component units. As defined by GASB Statement No. 14
and clarified by GASB Statement No. 39, component units are legally separate
entities that are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance
of their operating or financial relationships with the City.

Component units. In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
the financial statements of component units have been included in the financial
reporting entity as discretely presented component units.

Discretely presented component units. The component units column in the
government-wide financial statements includes the financial data of the City's
major component units. These units are reported in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

Dodge City Public Library: The members of the governing board of the Public
Library are appointed by the City Commissioners. The Public Library is
fiscally dependent on the City because the budget is approved by the City
Commissioners. In addition, the Public Library is prohibited from issuing
bonded debt without the approval of the City Commission.

Dodge City - Ford County Development Corporation: Two members of the
Corporation's board of directors are appointed by the City Commissioners.
The Corporation is fiscally dependent on the City because all employees of
the Corporation are paid by the City and are accountable to the City Manager
and Commissioners.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.

Financial reporting entity {(continued)

Dodge City Housing Authority: The members of the governing board of the
Housing Authority are appointed by the City Commission. Aithough the City
does not have the authority to approve or modify the Housing Authority's
operational and capital budgets, and the Housing Authority has the authority
to issue bonded debt, the City is fiscally responsible for the Housing Authority
since it was created as an agent of the City. The Housing Authority uses the
accrual basis of accounting and consists of one enterprise fund. The Housing
Authority has a fiscal year ending September 30, and the financial data
included in the discrete presentation are as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2009.

Complete financial statements of each of the individual major component units
can be obtained directly from their administrative offices.

Administrative Offices:

Dodge City Public Library
1001 Second Avenue
Dodge City, Kansas 67801

Dodge City - Ford County Development Corporation
311 W. Spruce
Dodge City, Kansas 67801

Dodge City Housing Authority
407 E. Bend
Dodge City, Kansas 67801

2. Basic financial statements - government-wide statements

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting
the City as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major
funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize
primary activities as either governmental or business-type. The City's general
government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation and community
services functions are classified as governmental activities. The water,
wastewater, solid waste and drainage utility services are classified as business-
type activities.

in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by
column, and (b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis which
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and
obligations. The City's net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets.
Restricted net assets include those restricted for debt service, construction and
sales tax projects. The City first utilizes restricted resources to finance
qualifying activities.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 Basic financial statements - government-wide statements {continued)

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net
cost of each of the City's governmental functions and business-type activities.
The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property
taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues). The Statement of Activities
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated
with the governmental function or business-type activity. Governmental charges
for services include licenses, fees and permits, rentals, fines and forfeitures, and
charges for recreational activities. Business-type charges (operating revenue)
include charges for utility services. Operating grants include operating-specific
and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants
column reflects capital-specific grants. All internal activity has been eliminated.

The net costs (by governmental function or business-type activity) are normally
covered by general government revenues such as property taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and interest income.

The City does not allocate indirect costs. The direct costs of General Fund
services provided such as finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, technology
management, etc. are included in the governmental functions categories.

This government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the City as an entity and
the change in the City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities.

3. Basic financial statements - fund financial statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund
equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported
by generic classification within the financial statements.

The following funds are used by the City:

a. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement in the fund statements
is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position
(sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources) rather than
upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds
of the City.

General fund is the general operating fund of the City. !t is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Debt service funds are established for the purpose of accumuiating
resources for ihe payment of interest and principal on long-term debt other
than that payable from enterprise funds.

Capital projects funds are used to account for major capital expenditures
not financed by enterprise funds.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.

Basic financial statements - fund financial statements (continued)

b. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows.
The generally accepted accounting principies applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the
proprietary funds of the City.

Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the
activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the
net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing
services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (¢)
establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to
recover similar costs. Operating revenues include charges for services;
non-operating revenues include investment income, operating grants and
contributions.

internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by an activity to other depariments or funds of the City
on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the
governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category
are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth the
minimum  criteria  (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise
combined) for the determination of major funds. The City may electively add
funds as major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in one column in the
fund financial statements. Major governmental funds are the General, Sales Tax,
GO Bond and Interest, Special Events Center Revenue Bonds and Special Events
Center Project Fund. The major business-type funds are the Water and
Wastewater Funds. At the request of the City, the Solid Waste and Drainage
Utility Funds are also presented as major funds.

The City's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary funds financial
statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are the City's
governmental activities, the financial information of the internal service fund is
consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the government-
wide financial statements. The administrative overhead component of these
programs is not eliminated, but is included in direct expenses. To the extent
possible, the cost of these services is reported in the appropriate governmental
functional activity (general government, public safety, public works, etc.). internal
services are provided through the Vehicle Maintenance Fund.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded
within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when’
transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued)

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities,
both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below.

in the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement
focus or the “economic resources’ measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement
focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on
their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses
of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These
funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial
resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus.
The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination
of operating income, changes in net assets {or cost recovery), financial
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund
equity is classified as net assets.

Rasis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis
of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic
asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when ‘“measurable and available.”
Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are
expected to be collected within 60 days of the end of the year.

Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability
is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are
reported when due.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual

basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the Tiability is incurred or economic asset used.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for
goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is used in the governmental
funds. For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end, except for
the portion related to encumbered amounts. Encumbrances outstanding at year-
end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitment will be honored during the
subsequent year.

Budgetary control

Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the
general fund, special revenue funds (unless specifically exempted by statute),
debt service funds and enterprise funds. The statutes provide for the following
sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating budget:

a. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before
August 1.

b. Publication in local newspaper on or before August 5" of the proposed
budget and notice of public hearing on the budget.

c. Public hearing on or before August 15", but at least ten days after
publication of notice of hearing.

d. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25"

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted
budget for previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem
property taxes. To do this, a notice of public hearing 1o amend the budget must
be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days after publication the
hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that time.
Budgets were amended for the following funds:

Original Amended
Fund budget budget

Sales Tax $2,769,851 $16,293,201
All 4 Fun . 223,300
Medical Insurance Fund 2,310,488 2,330,489
Bond & Interest 2,769,385 2,780,385
Capital Improvement Fund 403,000 453,000
Drainage Fund 599,355 £50,000
Transportation 248,716 270,000

The statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an
individual fund. However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the
total amount of the adopted budget of expenditures of individual funds. Budget
comparison statements are presented for the General Fund and major special
revenue funds showing actual receipts and expenditures compared to legally
budgeted receipts and expenditures.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6.

Budgetary control {continued)

All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the statutory basis of
accounting, in which revenues are recognized when cash is received and
expenditures include disbursements, accounts payable, and encumbrances, with
disbursements being adjusted for prior year's accounts payable and
encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments by the municipality for future
payments and are supported by a document evidencing the commitment, such as
a purchase order or contract. Any unused budgeted expenditure authority lapses
at year-end.

A legal operating budget is not required for state and federal grant funds, donation
funds, reserve funds, capital projects funds, agency funds and the following
special revenue funds and debt service funds:

Special Revenue:
Sales Tax Organizations
Special Law Enforcement Trust
Economic Development Revolving
Hoover Trust
Roof Insurance Repairs
Medical Insurance Reserve
Capital Equipment Reserve
Underage Alcohol Abuse
DARE
SMPC Trust
Municipal Band

Debt Service:
Sales Tax Series A Debt Service
Sales Tax Series B Debt Service

Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget
requirement is controlied by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of
internal spending limits established by the governing body.

Pension plan

Substantially all full-time employees are members of the State of Kansas Public
Employees' Retirement System (KPERS) or the Kansas Police and Firemen's
Retirement System (KP&F), both of which are cost-sharing multipie-employer
state-wide pension plans. The City's policy is to fund all pension costs accrued;
such costs to be funded are determined annually by the system's actuary.

Section 125 plan

The City offers a section 125 flexible benefit plan to employees electing to
participate. It is used for health insurance premiums, other medical costs and
child care costs. The plan is administered by the health insurance provider.

Health savings account

The City offers eligible employees a health savings account administered by
Fidelity State Bank. It is optional for employees to participate in the City's high
deductible health plan. The City's match for the HSA is $500 for family and $250

for single.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

10. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results

could differ from those estimates.

11. Financial statement amounis

a. Pooled cash

To facilitate better management of the City's cash resources, excess cash is
combined in pooled operating accounts. Each fund’s portion of total cash is
based on its equity in the pooled cash amount. Cash in excess of current
operating needs is invested on a pooled investment basis and earnings
thereon are distributed to the appropriate funds based on the average
monthly balance of cash and temporary investments included in the

combined pool of cash and temporary investments.

b. Investments and restricted cash

Investments consist of time deposits, certificates of deposit, the State
Municipal Investment Pool and repurchase agreements. The investment
pool is administered by a board consisting of the State Treasurer and four
additional members appointed by the Governor of the State of Kansas.
Investments are reported at fair value (which is the same as cost) in the
statement of net assets. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the

change in net assets.

Enterprise funds and sales tax revenue bond project funds, based on certain
bond covenants, are required to establish and maintain a prescribed amount
of resources (consisting of cash and temporary investments) that can be
used only to service outstanding debt. These amounts are restricted cash.
Cash in capital projects funds and the Sales Tax Fund is restricted for the

corresponding project.

¢. Cash and cash equivalents

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand,
demand deposits, and all highly liguid investments, including restricted
assets, with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

d. Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues
earned at year-end and not yet received. Major receivable balances for the
governmental activities include trade accounts receivable for miscellaneous
charges, and receivables from other governments for grant funding.
Business-type activities report utility service charges as accounts receivable.
An allowance for doubtful receivables is not considered necessary because

receivables are written off when they become uncollectible.
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A, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial statement amounts (continued)

d. Receivables (continued)

The determination of assessed valuation and the collections of property
taxes for all political subdivisions in the State of Kansas is the responsibility
of the various counties. The County Appraiser's Office annually determines
assessed valuation and the County Clerk allocates the annual assessment
to the taxing units. Taxes are levied by November 1, and a lien for all taxes
attaches on that same date until the taxes are paid. One-half of the property
taxes is due December 20 and distributed by January 20 and the second
half is due May 10 and distributed by June 5. Consequently, current year
property taxes receivable are not available as a resource that can be used
to finance the current year operations of the City. Accruals of uncollected
current year property taxes have been deferred and are not reflected in

revenue.

It is not practicable to apportion delinquent taxes held by the County
Treasurer at the end of the year and, further, the amounts thereof are not

material in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

In applying GASB Statement No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables
and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, are met. Resources transmitied before the -eligibility
requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and
deferred revenue by the recipient. Subsidies and grants to proprietary
funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are reported as

nonoperating revenue.

e. Inventories

Inventories in the proprietary funds consist of expendable supplies held for
the City's use and are carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or

market.

f. Capital assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000 or more

are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
assets are reported at fair value as of the date received.

Contributed
Additions,

improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful
life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation/amortization on all
assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful lives:
Buildings and improvements 10-50 years
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Utility systems 25-50 years
General infrastructure 10-50 years
Water rights 50 years

12. Deferred hond issue costs

Deferred bond issue costs are being amortized on the straight-line basis over the

respective lives of the bonds.
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SUIIVIARKY U SIGNIFICANT AVLUUUNTING FULILIZES (LUNBINUEZL)

13. Compensated absences

14.

The City's policies regarding vacation permit an employee to accumulate a
maximum of 20 days vacation. These amounts are paid to the employee upon
retirement or if the employee left on good standing. A maximum accumulation of
120 days of sick leave is allowed. Upon retirement or termination, 25% of the
accumulated sick leave at April 1, 1993 is paid to employees with hire dates
ﬁreceding April 1, 1993 and with twelve continuous months of service. Employees
ired after April 1, 1993 are not eligible for any payment for sick leave upon
termination or retirement. The City has a sick leave bank whereby employees can
transfer excess sick leave to a bank to be used by employees who are on
extended sick leave and have exhausted their own sick leave accumulation. The
sick leave bank is administered by a committee of City employees. All employees
are given credit for holidays worked, which is then accumulated for additional time
ic:.)ff. Thlis rtlo[iday time must be taken within the same year in which earned or the
ime is lost.

The liabilities for accrued vacation, sick leave and holiday time have been
recorded in the respective funds, representing the City's commitment to fund such
costs from future operations. The liabilities are based on current salary costs and
the vested portion of accumulated benefits.

Fund equity

Reservations of fund balances of governmental funds are established to either (1)
satisfy legal covenants that require that a portion of the fund balance be
segregated or (2) identify the portion of the fund balance that is not appropriable
for future expenditures. = Specific reservations of the fund balance accounts are
summarized below.

Reserve for encumbrances. The reserve for encumbrances was created fo
represent encumbrances outstanding at the end of the year based on
purchase orders and contracts signed by the City but not completed as of the
close of the fiscal year.

Reserve for debt service. The reserve for debt service was “created to
segregate a portion of the fund balance account for debt service, including
both principal payments and interest payments. The reservation was
established to satisfy legal restrictions imposed by various bond agreements.

Reserve for relending. The reserve for relending was created to segregate
the portion of revolving loan funds which is avaiable for lending to future
borrowers. .

Reserve for endowment. The reserve for endowment was created fo
comply with the terms of a will. The City was required to invest the
endowment and spend only the earnings on maintenance of parks and
cemeteries.

Reserve for construction. The reserve for construction was created to
segregate a portion of fund balance for various construction projects to which
the City has made a commitment.

Reserve for projects. The reserve for projects was created to segregate a
portion of fund balance for the voter approved sales tax projects.

The designated portion of unreserved fund balances in the governmental fund
financial statements represents the amount of current year resources which were
included in the subsequent year's budget to be used to finance operations of the
ensuing year. The unreserved fund balances represent the amount available for
budgeting future operations.
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

15.

16.

17.

Special assessments

Projects financed in part by special assessments are financed through issuance of
general obligation bonds of the City and are retired from the bond and interest
fund. Special assessments paid prior to the issuance of bonds are recorded as
revenue in the appropriate project fund. Special assessments received after the
issuance of bonds are recorded as revenue in the bond and interest fund or the
appropriate capital project fund.

Interfund activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables and are subject to elimination
upon consolidation. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.
All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the
government-wide financial statements.

Other post employment benefiis

As provided by K.S.A. 12-5040, the City allows retirees to participate in the group
health insurance plan. While each retiree pays the full amount of the applicable
premium, conceptually, the City is subsidizing the retirees because each
participant is charged a level of premium regardless of age. However, the cost of
this subsidy has not been quantified in these financial statements, because it is
not considered material.

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City
makes health care benefits available fo eligible former employees and eligible
dependents. Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for this
coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured. There is no cost to the City
under this program.

B. COMPLIANCE WITH KANSAS LAW

References made herein to the statutes are not intended as interpretations of law, but
are offered for consideration to the Director of Accounts and Reports, Kansas
Department of Administration, and interpretation by the legal representatives of the

City.

The budget law provided by K.S.A. 79-2935 prohibits the expenditure of funds in
excess of that allowed by budget. Budgeted and actual expenditures for the year
ended December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Fund Budget Actual Variance
General $ 15,977,845 $ 14,005,526 $ 1,972,319
Special Liability 735,000 461,366 273634
Library 844,195 844 195 -
Library Employee Benefits 224 697 224,697 -
Building 93,000 22,734 70,266
Sales Tax 16,293,201 16,064,885 228,316
Convention and Visitors 563,291 497 418 65,873
Special Streets and Highways 920,574 677,762 242 812
Special Park and Recreation 80,000 80,000 -
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B. COMPLIANCE WITH KANSAS LAW (CONTINUED)

Fund Budget Actual Variance
Special Alcohol and Drug $ 95,000 95,000 -
Alcohol and Drug Safety Action 40,000 23,116 16,884
All 4 Fun 223,300 224,768 (1,468)
GO Bond and interest 2,780,385 2,758,780 21,695
Water 4,066,403 4,185,129 (118,726)
Wastewater 5,306,638 4,955,986 350,652
Solid Waste 1,915,430 1,805,871 109,559
Drainage Utility 650,000 318,932 331,068
Vehicle Maintenance 270,000 279,013 {9,013)

The cash basis law provided by K.S.A. 10-1113 prohibits the creation of indebtedness
in excess of available monies in a fund. Although certain special revenue tederal grant
funds overspent their cash balances, according to K.S.A. 12-1664, the City is not
prohibited from financing the federal share of a local program from current funds if
available. Funds in the category are as follows:

ARFF Building % 121,995
BJA 2008 Grant 4012
Minibus 2009 Grant 14
Minibus 2010 Grant 11,730

C. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Policy. The City does not have a formal policy for bank account deposits; however it
does follow state statutes. K.S.A. 9-1401 establishes the depositories which may be
used by the City. The statute requires banks eligible to hold the City’s funds to have a
main or branch bank in the county in which the City is located, or in an adjoining county
if such institution has been designated as an official depository, and the banks to
provide an acceptable rate of return on funds. In addition, K.S.A. 9-1402 requires the
City's deposits in financial institutions to be entirely covered by federal depository
insurance, by a corporate surety bond, or by collateral held under a joint custody
receipt issued by a bank within the State of Kansas, the Federal Reserve Bank of
Kansas City, or the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka.

The investment policy of the City includes money market accounts and certificates of
deposit which are considered deposits for financial accounting purposes. It also
includes financial instruments such as U.S. Government obligations, repurchase
agreements and the State Municipal Investment Pool. This policy requires the City to
follow state statutes for investments. Statutes name the types of investments allowed
and also require depository security coverage and that securities be titled in the name
of the municipality.

K.S.A. 12-1675 limits the City's investment of idle funds to time deposits, open
accounts, and certificates of deposit with allowable financial institutions; U.S.
government securities; temporary notes; no-fund warrants; repurchase agreements;
and the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool.  Additionally, K.S.A. 10-131(a)(6)
authorizes the City to invest proceeds of bonds in obligations of the Federal National
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Banks, or the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation. State statutes place no limit on the amount the City may invest
in any one issuer.
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C. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial credit risk - deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. At year-end the carrying
amount of the City’s deposits, including certificates of deposit, was $19,5648,165. The
bank balance was $20,303,241. Of the bank balance, $3,950,434 was covered by
FDIC insurance, $16.352,807 was collateralized by pledged securities held under joint
custody receipts issued by a third-party bank in the City’s name.

Investments. As of December 31, 2009, the City had the following investments and

maturities.

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rating
Repurchase Agreement MBIA $ 1,668,425 (See below) SP-1+
Escrow Accounts - Dreyfus 39,966,308 N/A AAAM
Kansas Municipal Investment Poo! 6.566,489 (See helow) AAAT

$48.201,222

At December 31, 2009, the City had invested $6,566,489 in the State's Municipal
Investment Pool. The Municipal Investment Pool is under the oversight of the Pooled
Money Investment Board. The board is comprised of the State Treasurer and four
additional members appointed by the State Governor. The board reports annually to
the Kansas legislature. State pooled monies may be invested in direct obligations of,
or obligations that are insured as to principal and interest, by the U.S. government or
any agency thereof, with maturities up to four years. No more than ten percent of
those funds may be invested in mortgage-backed securities. In addition, the State pool
may invest in repurchase agreements with Kansas banks or with primary government
securities dealers. Separately issued financial statements of the Municipal Investment
Pool may be obtained from the Pooled Money Investment Board, 900 S.W. Jackson,
Suite 209, Topeka, Kansas 66612-1220.

Credit quality risk. Investment quality ratings given above are per Standard & Poor’s,
and they are as of December 31, 2009.

Concentration of credit risk. Investment types and percents at cost are as follows:
Repurchase agreement MBIA 3%, Kansas Municipal [nvestment Pool 14%, and
Dreyfus escrow accounts 83%.

Interest Rate Risk. The City’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates. The repurchase agreement was made with MBIA Insurance Corporation on
December 9, 2003, with Wells Fargo Bank as custodian. On February 18, 2009,
Standard and Poor’s Rating Services downgraded the financial strength of MBIA to SP-
1+,

The underlying securities for the repurchase agreement with MBIA are a Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corp Medium Term Note (CUSIP 31397JCNZ2) in the amount of
$1,000,000 at 4.879% with a maturity of May 19, 2017; a Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corp Structured Pass Through Note (CUSIP 31397JME1) in the amount of
$715.903.39 at 0.3035% with a maturity of December 25, 2036; and Welis Fargo
Advantage Government (CUSIP VP4560000) in the amount of $100,001.38 at .0100%.
The Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation is a direct obligation of the federal
government since its takeover on September 7, 2008, and is therefore unrated. This
repurchase agreement represents 3% of investments.

44



D. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 2009 consist of the following:

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total

Miscellaneous charges receivable $ 532658 116,538 $ 649,196
Water charges receivable - 167,828 167,828
Wastewater charges receivable - 110,360 110,360
Solid waste charges receivable - 84,364 84,364
Drainage utility charges receivable - 10,518 10,518
Loans receivable 376,208 - 376,208
Sales tax receivable 692,197 - 692,197

Net receivables $ 1601083 $ 489608 $ 2090671

LOANS RECEIVABLE
L oans receivable of the Economic Development Revolving Fund are as follows:

In 20086, the City issued $70,000 and $192,500 revolving loans to two local companies
from funds paid in retirement of original Community Development Block Grant revolving
loans. In 2007, $35,000 was added to the $70,000 loan. The loans at six percent are to
be repaid over a period of eleven years. At December 31, 2009 the loan balances were
$84,783 and $147,819, respectively.

In 2007, the City issued a $90,000 revolving loan to a local company from funds paid in
retirement of original Community Development Block Grant revolving loans. The loan at
six percent is to be repaid over a period of nine years. At December 31, 2008, the loan
balance was $75,977.

In 2008, the City issued a $75,000 revolving loan to a local company from funds paid in
retirement of original Community Development Block Grant revolving loans. The loan at
six percent is to be repaid over a period of seven years. At December 31, 2009 the loan

balance was $67,629.

F. CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary government

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance
Governmental activities:
Land $ 5416677 § 165590 § - § 5582267
Buildings and improvements 24,011,132 349,254 - 24,360,386
Machinery and equipment 9,628,016 844,434 394,768 8,977,681
Infrastructure 202,606,466 4,096,262 - 206,702,728
Construction in progress 4,161,236 9,378,716 939,176 12,601,776
Total capitat assets at
historical cost 245723526 14,835,256 1,333,044 259,224 838
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 6,294,656 757,750 658 7,051,748
Machinery and equipment 6,948,337 640,840 307,417 7,281,760
Infrastructure 135,354 498 9,702,401 145,056,897
Total accumulated
depraciation 148,597,489 11,100,991 308,075 159,390,405
Governmental activities
capital assefs, net $_97.126,037 $.3.734.265 $.1.025.869 3 90,834 .433

45



F. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Primary government

Beginning Ending
balance increases Decreases balance
Business-type activities:
Land $ 1,619,895 § - 3 5003 % 1,514,802
Buildings and improvements 15,086,017 56,371 39,736 15,082,652
Machinery and equipment 5,633,305 377,718 167,307 5,843,714
Infrastructure 44 462 632 1,316,813 - 45779,445
Water righis 3,542,614 - 3,542,614
Construction in progress - 498,558 - 499,558
Total capital assets at

historical cost 70,224 463 2,250,458 212,046 72,262,875

Less accumulated depreciation/

amortization for:
Buildings and improvements 12,339,723 434,939 - 12,774,712
Machinery and equipment 4,109,514 304,624 207,112 4,207,026
Infrasiructure 8,549,219 886,493 - 9,435,712
Water rights 133,857 62,027 - 195,884
Total accumulated
depreciation 25,132,413 1,688,133 207,112 26,613,434
Business-type activities

capital assets, net $ 450000580 & _BG62.325 3 4,934 §.45.649,441

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental aciivities:

General government $ 46,654
Public safety 267,811
Public works 133,389
Culture and recreation 029,319
Community services 13,684
indirect depreciation 9,702,401
Internal service 7733

Total governmental activities $11,100,991

Business-type activities:

Water $ 629,601
Wastewater 853,324
Solid waste 168,983
Drainage 36,225

Total business-type activities $ 1,688,133

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 34 (Capitalization of
Interest Costs) requires that interest expenditures incurred during construction of
assets be capitalized. FAS-62 (Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations Involving
Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants) concludes that
constructed assets financed with the proceeds of tax-exempt debt (if those funds are
externally restricted to finance the acquisitions of the asset or used to service the
related debt) should include capitalized interest only to the extent that interest cost
exceeds interest earned on related interest-bearing investments acquired with
proceeds of the related tax-exempt borrowing. During 2009 no interest costs were
capitalized because interest expenditures related to constructed assets did not exceed
related interest revenue.
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F. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A summary of changes in property and equipment of material governmental component

units follows:
Beginning Ending
Dodge City Public Library balance Increases Decreases balance
Governmental activities:
l.and $ 338171 % -3 - % 338171
Buildings and improvements 1,727,078 125,620 - 1,852,698
Furniture and equipment 521,374 42624 45,398 518,599
Total capital assets at historical cost 2,586,623 168,244 45,389 2,709,468
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 1,132,533 47,803 - 1,180,335
Furniture and equipment 389.446 28,109 39,864 377,691
Total accumutated depreciation 1,521,979 75912 39,754 1,558,027
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,064,644 & 92,332 §..__ 5535 §_ 1151449

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:

Culture and recreation $ 75912
Beginning Ending
Development Corporation balance Increases Decreases balance

Goveramental activities:
Communify services:

Industrial park land and improvements $ 1086686 3§ - 3 - § 1,086,686
Furniture and equipment 54,068 8,206 - 62,274
1,140,754 8,206 - 1,148,960

Less accumulated depreciation for
furniture and equipment 49,874 2,787 - 52,741
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,090,780 9 5439 §.. s 51,096,219

The industrial park land and improvements represent lots at the industrial park which
are held for sate and are carried at cost. The cost includes improvements to the land to
provide roads and utility access. These improvements were financed with funds from a
Community Development Block Grant which flowed through the City of Dodge City,
Kansas, and they are not being depreciated.

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund balances are used when one fund has an obligation to transfer funds to
another. The following is a summary of interfund receivables and payables at
December 31, 2000:

Amount Due to Due from
$ 178,816 Solid Waste Building
178,462 Sales Tax Water
$ 357278

The Solid Waste Fund receivable is for a loan made to the Building Fund in 2006. The
amount is expected to be paid back in 2010. The Sales Tax Fund receivable is for
water rights sold to the Water Fund in 2007. This is expected to be paid at about
$40,000 per year.
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H.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between
funds including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct
assets and service debt. The governmental and proprietary funds financia! statements
generally reflect such transactions as transfers. The internal service funds record
charges for service to City departments as operating revenue. All City funds record
these payments to the internal service fund as operating expenses.

Interfund transfers are made either for operating purposes or to transfer residual equity
balances.

A summary of interfund transfers for 2009 is as follows:

Staiutory

From To Amount authority

Operating transfers:
General All4 Fun $ 102,800 K.S.A 12-101a
General Capital Equipment Reserve 282,325 KS.A 12-10%a
General Capital improvement 100,000 K.S.A 12-1,117
General Municipa! Band 18,500 K. S.A 12-101a
Sales Tax SEC Revenue Bond Fund 973,340 K.S.A 12-197
Sales Tax SEC Casino Project 89,599 K.S.A 12187
Sales Tax Series A Debt Service 6,467,471 KS.A 12-197
Sales Tax Sales Tax Organizations 448,598 K.5.A 12-197
All 4 Fun General 30,000 K.S.A Contract
GO Bond & interest SEC & Casino Project 4,237,460 Resolution No. 2008-21
GO Bond & Interest 2007 Bonds 555,000 Resolution No. 2008-21
Convention and Visitors  General 15,085 K S.A 12-1698
Series A Debt Service SEC Revenue Bond Fund 3,535,282 K.S.A 12197
Series B Debt Service SEC Revenue Bond Fund 368,917 K.S.A. 12-197
Series B Dabt Service Sales Tax 31,321 K.S.A 12-187
SEC Revenue Bond SEC Project Fund 390,346,811 K.S.A. 12-157
Water General 650,000 K.S.A 12-825d
Wastewater General 457,230 K.S.A 12-825d
Solid Waste General 127,622 K.S.A 12-825d
Solid Waste Bond & Interest 125,000 K.S.A 12-825d
Drainage General 35540 K.S.A. 12-825d
A summary of transfers to component units follows:

From To Amount
Library Fund Dodge City Public Library $ 844,195
Library Employee

Benefits Fund Dodge City Public Library 224,697
1,068,892
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

L ong-term obligations

The City's long-term liabilities are segregated between amounts to be repaid from
governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

Debt Debt
outstanding Retirements  outstanding
January 1, and December 31, Interest
2009 Additions repayments 2009 expense
Governmental activities
To be paid with tax levies:
General obligation bonds  $20,850,000 $ 6,280,000 § 3,795,000 $23,335000 & 803,840
Temporary Notes - 565,000 - 565,000 -
Capital lease obiigations 47,178 “ 15,135 32,043 1,819
Note payabie 427,500 - 30,000 397,500 -
Compensated absences 532,798 46,109 75,467 503,440 -
To be paid with sales
tax revenue:
Revenue bonds 3,640,000 40,300,000 3,640,060 40,300,000 1,240,284
25497476 47,191,108 7,555,602 65,132,983 2,045 943
Business-type activities
To be paid with utility
revenues!
General ohligation
bonds 615,000 - 615,000 - 22,448
Revenue bonds 17,925,000 - 910,000 17,015,000 742,986
Water loan 3,069,007 - 156,917 2,912,090 118,177
Temporary notes 2,265,000 2,750,000 - 5,015,000 59,456
Compensated absences 82732 7.946 1.705 88973 -
23,956,739 2,757,946 1,683,622 25,031,083 943,067
$45,454.219 $90164046 $ 2989010

Added and deleted amounts for compensated absences do not include the current cost
as such amounts are not readily determinable.

Governmental activities

General obligation bonds:

General obligation bonds are serial bonds to be retired through calendar year 2029. At
December 31, 2009 the bonds consist of the following:

Interest Maturity Bonds
rates dates outstanding

Refunding and internal

improvements, issued

September 1, 2004 in the

amount of $2,830,000 1.50% to 3.63% 09-01-15 § 1,340,000
Internal improvements,

issued August 1, 2005 in the

amount of $6,515,000 3.45% to 4.00% 09-01-25 5,310,000
Internal improvements,

issued November 1, 2006 in

the amount of $1,0985,000 3.50% to 3.85% 09-01-16 800,000
Internal improvements,

issued December 15, 2007 in

the amount of $9,250,000 3.10% to 3.85% 09-01-22 8,560,000
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental activities {continued)

General obligation bonds (continued):

Bonds
outstanding

interest
rates

Maturity
dates

Internal improvements,
issued December 1, 2008 in
the amount of $1,155,000
Internal improvements,
Issued October 7, 2009 in
The amount of $6,280,000

3.25% to 4.25% 09-01-18 $ 1,045,000

1.75% to 4.25% 09-01-29 6,280,000
$ 23,335,000

Principal and interest payments of general obligation bonds required to be made in the
following years are:

Principal interest Total

due due due
2010 $ 1,970,000 $ 853,093 § 2,823,093
2011 2,025,000 821,587 2,846,587
2012 1,895,000 764,925 2,659,925
2013 1,850,000 628,428 2,478,428
2014 1,605,000 572,478 2,177,478
2015-2019 6,895,000 2,078,629 8,973,629
2020-2024 5,265,000 882,866 6,147,866
2025-2029 1,830,000 200,354 2,030,354
$ 23,335,000 $§ 6,802,360 $ 30,137,360

The amount of long-term debt that can be incurred by the City is limited by K.S.A.
10-308. Total outstanding bonded indebtedness during a year can be no greater than
30% of the assessed value of taxable tangible property as certified to the county clerk
on the preceding August25. As of December 31, 2009, the amount of outstanding
bonded indebtedness was equal to 19.51% of property assessments as of July 1,
2008.

Capital leases:

The following is a description of capital lease obligations of the City:

[nterest Maturity Outstanding
rates date balance
Golf cars, dated May 15, 2008,
in the original amount of $64,1311 3.86% 05-15-11 § 32,043
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental activities (continued)

Capital leases (continued):

Assets recorded under capital leases were $64,131 and corresponding accumulated
depreciation at December 31, 2000 was $13,742.

Payments for the golf cars are made from the General Fund.
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases,

together with the net present value of the minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 2009.

Year ending December 31, Amount
2010 $ 16,954
2011 16,954
33,908
Less: Amount representing interest 1,865
Present value of lease payments $ 32,043

For purposes of comparing actual expenditures to budget, only the amounts actually
due in the current period are included in accordance with K.S.A. 10-1116b.

Note payable:

The City entered into an agreement during 2006 to purchase $500,000 of property and
equipment, at zero percent interest, with title deeded to the City upon execution of the
agreement. The agreement contains a reconveyance option commencing January 1,
2007 and expiring December 31, 2010. The City has the absolute and unconditional
right to reconvey the property and equipment back to the seller during the option
period. If the City elects to exercise the reconveyance option, it will provide written
notice to the seller within 30 days. The seller will retain all payments received prior to
the reconveyance and all payments due at the time of such reconveyance.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments as of December 31, 2009:

2010 $ 27,500
2011 370,000
Total $ 397,500

Revenue bonds:

Revenue bonds to be paid from sales tax revenue consist of the foliowing:

Interest Maturity Bonds
rates dates outstanding
Series 2009 sales tax projects 4.10%to5.0% 06-01-18 $.40,300,000
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental activities (continued)

Revenue bonds (continued):

The aggregate annual principal and interest payments of revenue bonds required to be
made in the following years are:

Principal Interest Total

due due due
2010 $ 285000 $ 1,784,080 $ 2,069,080
2011 650,000 1,770,065 2,420,065
2012 705,000 1,749,740 2,454,740
2013 765,000 1,727,690 2,492 690
2014 825,000 1,703,840 2,528,840
2015-2019 5,130,000 8,077,769 13,207,769
2020-2024 7,345,000 6,830,127 14,175,127
2025-2029 10,250,000 4,943,816 15,193,816
2030-2034 14,345,000 1,899,075 16,244,075

$ 40,300,000 $ 30486212 $ 70,786,212

The revenue bond ordinance for the above bonds provides for deposits to the principal
and interest account each year to provide for the payment of principal and interest on
the bonds as they become due and payable.

Temporary notes:

The City issued temporary notes Series 2009-1 on December 7, 2009 for main
trafficway improvements. ~The original principal is $565,000 at a rate of 1.55%,
maturing September 1, 2012. Principal and interest payments required to be made in
the following years are:

Principal interest Total

due due due
2010 $ - 5,848 5,848
2011 - 8,735 8,735
2012 565,000 8,735 573,735

$ 565,000 23318 $_ 588.318

Business-type activities

Revenue bonds:

Revenue bonds, secured by revenues derived from the operations of the applicable
enterprise fund types, consist of the following:

Interest Maturity Bonds
rates dates outstanding
Series 2003 waterworks utility 2.00% to 4.625% 12-01-23 $ 5,104,500
Series 2003 wastewater utility 2.00% to 4.625% 12-01-23 11.910,500
$ 17,015,000
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Business-type actjvities (continued)

Revenue bonds (continued):

The aggregate annual principal and interest payments required to be made in the
following years are:

Waterworks Wastewater

utility utility

series series interest Total

2003 2003 due due
2010 3 280,500 % 654,500 % 715686 $ 1,650,686
2011 291,000 679,000 685,299 1,655,299
2012 300,000 700,000 653,774 1,653,774
2013 310,500 724,500 617,524 1,652,524
2014 334,500 780,500 578,194 1,693,194
2015-2019 1,809,000 4,221,000 2,190,527 8,220,527
2020-2023 1,779,000 4,151,000 683,838 6,613,838

$ 5104500 $ 11910500 $§ 6.124842 § 23,139,842

Revenue bond ordinances for the above bonds provide for deposits to principal and
interest accounts each year to provide for the payment of principal and interest on the
bonds as they become due and payable.

Water loan:

The City approved a loan agreement effective February 6, 2001, with the State of
Kansas Department of Health and Environment for water distribution improvement
projects in the amount of $4,394239. The interest rate is 4.25% per annum and
maturity is February 1, 2023. The principal and interest payments required to be made
in the following years are:

Principal Interest Total

due due due
2010 $ 163,657 $ 111,093 $ 275,650
2011 170,687 105,542 276,229
2012 178,018 98,815 276,833
2013 185,664 91,798 277,462
2014 193,638 84,480 278,118
2015-2019 1,100,328 301,148 1,401,476
2020-2023 920,098 73,277 993,375

$ 2012090 $ 867053 $ _3.779.143

Temporary notes:

The City issued temporary notes Series 2008A on December 1, 2008 for the purchase
of water rights. The orginal principal is $2,265,000 at a rate of 3.50%, maturin
September 1, 2012. The City issued temporary notes Series 2009-1 on December 7,
2009 for various water supply system improvements. The original principal is
$2.750.000 at a rate of 1.55%, maturing September 1, 2012. Principal and interest
payments required to be made in the following years are:

Principal Interest Totai

due due due
2010 $ - % 92,121 § 92,121
2011 - 121,923 121,923
2012 5.015,000 121,923 5,136,923

5 5015000 $ 335967 $ 5,350,967
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Sales tax projects revenue bond disclosures

Insurance is carried on the property constituting Series 2009 Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds by the Contractor in the amount of the initial contract sum, plus the value of
subsequent contract modifications, comprising total value for the entire work of the
project at the site on the replacement cost basis through a builders risk “all-risk” policy,
Such property insurance shall be maintained until final payment has been made or until
no person or entity other than the Owner has an insurable interest in the property.

Balance sheets of the Series 2009 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are the Special Events
Center Revenue Bond Fund and Special Events Center Project Fund on page
eighteen.

Statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance of the Series 2009
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are the Special Events Center Revenue Bond Fund and
Special Events Center Project Fund on page twenty.

LONG-TERM DEBT - COMPONENT UNITS

Development Corporation - note payable

The note payable is due to a private company. |t is payable upon the sale of the land
and industrial park improvements with no set termination date. Upon the sale of any
property, seventy-five percent of the net sales price of the first $50,000 and all net
sales price over $50,000 is payable for interest accumulated to that date and then as a
reduction to principal. If at termination, the Organization elects not to pay the principai
and interest due, all land and industrial park improvements will be transferred fo the
lender. Interest is computed annually from July 1 through June 30 using the New York
prime rate on June 30 of the prior year. Interest compounds as of June 30 of each
year,

Accrued interest on the note plus the amount of the note payable have been limited to
a prior year estimated fair value of the property. During 2009 no additional interest was
accrued on the note. No appraisal of the property has been done in order to assess
whether the accrued interest recorded plus the related debt accurately reflect the
Organization's liability on this property.

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial
assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial
and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured
by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the
underlying morfgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers o the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the
City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2009, there were series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding,
with an aggregate principal amount payable of $115,254,231.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan description. The City of Dodge City contributes to the Kansas Public Employees
Retirement System (KPERS) and the Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System
(KP&F). Both are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans as
provided by K.S.A. 74-4801, et seq. KPERS and KP&F provide retirement benefits, life
insurance, disability income benefits, and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and
amends benefit provisions. KPERS and KP&F issue a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
Those reports may be obtained by writing to KPERS (611 S. Kansas, Suite 100,
Topeka, KS 66603-3803) or by calling 1-888-275-5737.

Funding Policy. K.S.A. 74-4919 establishes the KPERS member-employee
contribution rate at 4% of covered salary. K.S.A. 74-4975 establishes KP&F member-
employee contribution rate at 7% of covered salary. The employer collects and remits
member-employee contributions according to the provisions of section 414(h) of the
Internal Revenue Code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates be
determined annually based on the results of an annual actuarial valuation. KPERS and
KP&F are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. State law sets a limitation on annual
increases in the contribution rates. The KPERS employer rate established for the year,
2009 is 6.54% for January, February and December and 5.54% for the other nine
months. The City of Dodge City’'s employer contributions to KPERS for the years
ending December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $339,687, $263,744, and $220,794,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The KP&F employer
rate established for fiscal years beginning in 2008 is 13.51%. Employers patticipating
in KP&F also make contributions to amortize the liability for past service costs, if any,
which is determined separately for each participating employer. The City of Dodge
City’s contributions to KP&F for the years ending December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
were $773.293, $705,422, and $639,232, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

The Dodge City Public Library, the Dodge City - Ford County Development Corporation
and the Dodge City Housing Authority all participate in KPERS. The actuarially
determined contribution requirements of these component units were met.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; etrors and omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters;
and medical needs of employees. The City participates in a public entity risk pool to
cover worker's compensation claims. The City purchases commercial insurance to
cover property, liability and medical needs of employees. There have been no
sighificant reductions in coverage from the prior year, Settled claims have not

exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.

CONTINGENCIES

The City receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state
governmental agencies in the form of grants and state pass-through aid. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance
with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit.
Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the
General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any
such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements
of the City at December 31, 2008
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O. JOINT VENTURES

On January 1, 1993, the City of Dodge City, Kansas, entered into a joint venture with
Ford County, Kansas, for the operation of a communications center. By joint resolution
the Dodge City/Ford County Emergency Communications Board was created to
operate the Dodge City/Ford County Communications Department. The Board
consists of equal membership of City and County personnel. The department provides
emergency communications for City and County agencies and is physically located in
the Ford County Government Center. The budgeted operating expenditures are
shared equally by the two governments. The joint venture assets of $35,099 are fully
depreciated.

On July 21, 1997, the City of Dodge City, Kansas entered into a joint venture with Ford
County, Kansas, for the construction and operation of certain public projects. On
June 10, 1997, the voters of Dodge City and of Ford County approved a one-half
percent city-wide and a one-half percent county-wide retailer's sales tax to finance
these projects. The projects include but are not limited to the following: air-
conditioning at the Civic Center building; an outdoor motor sports complex; field sport
facilities, including a basebali/softball complex and additional soccer facilities and
renovation of existing facilities; and a special events center.

All City sales tax revenues for these projects are deposited into the Sales Tax Fund.
County sales tax revenues which are designated for Ford County and the City of
Dodge City are transferred to the City and deposited into the same fund. All
expenditures from the Sales Tax Fund are subject to approval of the City Commission.
All real estate acquired for the projects is titled to the City.

The interlocal agreement was amended on August 10, 2005. The agreement creates a
Community Facilities Advisory Board (CFAB) to serve as the project review and
advisory committee. There are to be seven members on the Board: one City
Commissioner, one County Commissioner, four at-large members and the Chairperson
of the Board of Directors of the Dodge City/Ford County Development Corporation or
his designee.

P. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2009, the City had the following commitments with respect to
unfinished capital projects and repairs:

Project Remaining
commitments  Expenditures financial
Project authorized to date commitment
ARFF Building $ 1047824 $ 1,389,346 § 558,478
ARFF Equipment 858,492 9,900 848,592
14th Avenue 3,179,197 2,730,412 448,785
Special Events Center 5,202,684 1,519,630 3,683,054
Parking Lot
Special Events Center 28,463,783 2,306,105 26,157,678
Building
Wastewater Treatment Plant 18,300,000 407 457 17,892,543
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Q. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 30, 2010, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be used. Management's evaluation
concluded that there are no subsequent events that are required to be recognized or
disclosed in these financial statements.
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2009

Tatal
Special Capital nonmajor
revenue projects governmental
funds funds funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 4,165,650 3 76,1586 $ 4,241,806
Property taxes receivable 1,331,351 189,262 1,620,603
Due from other governments 137,286 - 137,286
Other receivables 383,141 - 383,141
Restricted cash and investments - 470,386 470,386
Total assets $ 6017428 $ 735794 § 6,753,222
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabiiities:
Accounts payable $ 193482 $ 249310 % 442 792
Payroll Eabilities 7,365 - 7,365
Due to other funds 178,816 - 178,816
Deferred revenue 1,936 612 189,252 2,125,864
Total liahilities 2,316,275 438,662 2,754,837
fFund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 13,602 - 13,602
Debt service - - -
Relending 76,584 - 76,584
Endowment 100,000 - 100,000
Construction - 236,132 236,132
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditures 2,564,689 - 2,554 689
Undesignated 956,278 - 956,278
Capital projects funds
Undesignated - 61,100 61,100
Total fund
balances 3,701,153 287,232 3,998,385
Total liabilities and
fund batances $ 65,017,428 % 735794 § 6753222

58



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

December 31, 2009

Library
Special empioyee
liability Library benefits Building
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 347685 3 24,957 3 14,759 5 365,703
Property taxes receivable 374,278 693,916 214,793 48,365
Due from other governments - - - -
Other receivables - - - -
Total assets $ 721,983 $ 718,872 $ 229,552 $ 414,068
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 13,119 $ - $ - $ -
Payroll liabililies - - - -
Due to other funds - - - 178,816
Deferred revenue 374,278 693,915 214,793 48,365
Total liabilities 387,397 693,915 214,793 227,181
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbprances - - - -
Reserved for relending - - - -
Reserved for endowment - - - -
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditures 122,429 24,957 7,170 146 520
Undesignated 212,137 - 7,589 40,367
Total fund batances 334,566 24,957 14,759 186,887
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 721,083 $ 718,872 $ 229,552 $ 414,068
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Special Special Special Alcohol and
Convention sireets and park and aicohol drug safety
and visitors highways recreation and drug action All 4 Fun

$ 487,002 £ 75,682 3 122,544 3 48,085 £ 49,444 ¥ 2,447

- - - - 1,422 -

$ 497,002 3 75,682 3 122,644 $ 48,085 S 50,866 $ 2,447

$ 4,703 $ 11,898 B - 5 - $ 1,640 $ 2,437
3,040 2,800 . - - -

7,743 14,698 - . 1,840 2,437

- 13,602 - - - -

358,049 5,782 111,301 398,943 43,478 iC
132,110 41,580 11,243 8,142 5,748 -
490,159 60,984 122,644 48,085 49,226 10

$ 497,902 $ 75,682 $ 122,544 $ 48,085 $ 50,866 $ 2,447




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2009

Special law Economic
Sales tax enforcement deveiopment Hoover
organizations trust revoiving frust
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 514,090 3 13,003 $ 76,584 $ 118,551
Property taxes receivable - - - -
Due from other governments - - - -
Other receivables - - 376,208 -
Total assets $ 514,090 3 13,003 $ 482,792 $ 118,551
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 165 $ - $ - $ -
Payroli liabilities 507 - - -
Due to other funds - - - -
Deferred revenue - - 376,208 -
Tota! liabtiities 672 - 376,208 -
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances - - - -
Reserved for relending - - 76,584 -
Reserved for endowment - - - 100,000
Designated for subseguent
year's expenditures 513,418 - - -
Undesignated - 13,003 - 18,551
Total fund balances 513,418 13,003 76,584 118,551
Total liabiiities and
fund balances $ 514,080 $ 13,003 $ 452,792 $ 118,551
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Roof Medicat Capital Underage
insurance insurance equipment alcohol ARFF
repairs reserve reserve abuse DARE building
$ 284,080 $ 506,396 $ 889,285 5,384 $ 10,830 $ 415
- - - - - 121,885
- 4,482 - - 1,029 -
$ 294,980 $ 510,878 $ 889,285 5,384 5 11,859 $ 122410
% - 3 26,779 $ - 3,273 $ 798 $ 122,410
229,053 - - - - -
229,053 26,779 - 3,273 798 122,410
- 439,503 653,442 2,411 8,856 -
65,927 44 596 235,843 - 2,205 -
65,927 484,099 889,285 2,111 11,061 -
$ 294,980 $ 510,878 $ 889,285 5,354 $ 11,859 3 122410




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2009

COPS for Bureau of Byrne
schools Justice grant
grant grant 2008 2009
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 30,285 $ (4,012) 3 44,324
Property taxes receivable - - -
Due from other governments - 4,012 -
Other receivables - - -
Total assets $ 30,295 $ - 3 44 324
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 3 - § 5,222
Payroll liabilities - - -
Due to other funds - - -
Deferred revenue - - -
Total liahilities - - 5222
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances - - -
Reserved for relending - - -
Reserved for endowment - - -
Designated for subseguent
year's expenditures - - -
Undesignated 30,285 - 39,102
Total fund balances 30,285 - 39,102
Total liabilities and
fund balances 3 30,285 $ - 5 44,324

61



Minibus
grant
2009

Minibus

grant
2010

SMPC
trust

Totat
nonmajor
special
revenue funds

(9,688)

11,279

108,656

$ 4,165,650
1,331,351
137,286
383,141

1,591

106,856

$ 6,017,428

1,024
1,018

$ 193,482
7,365
178,816
1,936,612

2,042

2,316,275

(451)

77,710
28,946

13,662
76,584
100,000

2,554 689
056,278

(451)

106,656

3,701,153

1,591

108,656

$ 6,017,428




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

December 31, 2008

Total
nenmajor
Capital GO bonds GO bonds capital
improvement 2007 2008 projects funds
ASSETS
Cash and investmenis $ 76,156 3 - - $ 76,156
Property taxes receivable 189,252 - - 189,252
Restricted cash and investments - 460,830 9,558 470,386
Total assets $ 265408 $ 460,830 9 556 $ 735794
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 15,056 $ 231696 2,558 $ 249,310
Deferred revenue 189,252 - - 189,252
Total liabiitties 204,308 231,696 2,658 438,562
Fund balances:
Reserved for construction - 229,134 6,998 236,132
Unreserved 61,100 - - 61,100
Taotal fund balances 61,100 229,134 6,998 297,232
Total liabilities and
fund halances $ 265408 $ 480,830 9,556 $ 735794
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenue:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
[nvestment earnings
Miscelianeous

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community services
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and commissions

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out
Transfers to component units

Total other financing
sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Year ended December 31, 2009

Total

Special Debt Capital nonmajor

revenue service projects governmental
funds funds funds funds

$ 1,670,316 - $ 257,651 $ 1,927,967
2,828,231 - - 2,928,231
230,559 - - 230,559
33,815 - - 33,815
204,974 - - 204,974
5,067,895 - 257,651 5,325,546
586,026 - 40,429 626,455
1,683,917 - 5,000 1,688,917
880,759 - 3,831,826 4,712,585
467,380 - 4620111 5,087,491
1,085,548 - 69,090 1,154,638
- 3,640,000 - 3,640,000

- 88,277 - 88,277
4,703,630 3728277 8,566,456 16,998,363
364,265 (3,728,277) (8,308,805) (11,672,817)
852,223 6,467,471 4,892,059 12,311,753
{45,985) (3,935,519) - (3,981,504)
{1,068,892) - - (1,068,892)
(262,654) 2,531,852 4,992 059 7,261,357
101,611 (1,196,325) (3,316,746) (4,411,460)
3,599,642 1,196,325 3,613,978 8,409,845
$ 3,701,153 ~ $ 297,232 $ 3,898,385
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2009

Revenuse:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
of revenue over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in
Transfers out
Transfers to component units

Total other financing
sources and uses
Net change in
fund balances

Fund balances,
beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Special
fiability

Library

Library
employee
benefits

Building

460,291

$

862,379

$ 228,034

$ 179,612

7,458
5,400

400,291

862,379

228,034

192,470

461,365

22,734

461,366

22,734

{61,075)

862,379

228,034

169,736

(844,195)

(224,897)

(844,195)

(224,697)

(61,075)

395,641

18,184

6,773

3,337

11,422

169,736

17,151

¥

334,566

$

24,957

3 14,759

$ 186,887
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Special Special Special Alcohol and

Convention streets and park and alcohol drug safety
and visitors highways recreation and drug action All 4 Fun
) - $ - 3 - § - $ - $ -
586,383 648,495 73,143 73,143 - -
37,167 - - - 29,400 121,943
23,547 - - - - -
647,047 648,495 73,143 73,143 29,400 121,943
- - - - 23,116 -
- 679,380 - - - -
- - 80,000 - . 194,768
481,434 - - 95,000 - -
481,434 679,380 80,000 95,000 23,116 194,768
165,613 (30,885) (6,857) (21,857) 6,284 (72,825)
- - - - - 102,800
(15,985) - - - - (30,000)
{15,985) - - - - 72,800
149,628 (30,885) (6,857) (21,857) 6,284 (25)
340,531 91,869 129,401 69,942 42,942 35

480,159 $ 60,984 $ 122,544 3 48,085 $ 49,226 $ 10




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31, 2009
Special law Economic

Sales tax enforcement development Hoaver
organizations trust revolving trust

Revenue:
Taxes $ - $ - 5 - $ -
intergovernmental - -
Charges for services - 22,712 - -
nvestment earnings - - 23,795 1,196
Miscellaneous - - 37,152 -

Total revenue - 22,712 60,847 1,196

Expenditures:

Current:
(General government - -
Public safety - 29,106 - -
Public works - - - -
Culture and recreation -
Community services 506,723 - 891 -

Total expenditures 506,723 29,106 591 -

Excess (deficiency)
of revenue over
expendiiures (506,723) {6,394} 60,056 1,196

Cther financing sources (uses).
Transfers in 448,698 - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Transfers to component units . - - -

Tatal other financing
sources and uses 448 598 - - -

Net change in
fund balances (58,125) {6,394) 60,056 1,166

Fund balances,
beginning of year 571,543 19,397 16,528 117,355

Fund balances, end of year § 513418 3 13,003 $ 76,584 $ 118,551
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Roof Medical Capital Underage

insurance insurance equipment alcohol FAA grant
repairs reserve reserve abuse DARE slurry seal
- $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ -
- - - 16,404 - 30,748
- 19,397 - - - -
- 1,230 . - - -
14,082 - 7,827 - 20,164 1,620
11,082 20,627 7,827 16,404 20,164 32,368
95,130 29,530 - - - -
10,858 - 188,177 17,753 15,459 -
2,597 - 52,171 - - 32,369
- - 152,637 - - -
108,586 29,530 392,985 17,783 15,458 32,369
(97,504) (8,903) (385,158) {1,349) 4,705 (1
- - 282,326 - - -
- - 282,325 - - -
(97,504) (8,903) (102,833) (1,349) 4705 (1
163,431 493,002 992,118 3,460 6,356 1

65,827 $ 484,009 $ 889,285 $ 2,111 $ 11,061 3 -




CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Year ended December 31, 2009
COPS for

FAA grant ARFF schools Byme
master plan building grant grant

Revenue:
Taxes 3 - - -
Intergovernmental 45 149 1,209,276 24,686
Charges for services - - - -
investment earnings - - -
Miscellaneous (7,049) 71,881 - 5,565

Total revenue 38,100 1,281,157 30,295 30,251

Expenditures:

Current:
General government - - - .
Public safety - 1,281,167 . 30,251
Public works 36,195 - - -
Cuiture and recreation - - - ;
Community services - . - ;

Total expenditures 36,195 1,281,157 - 30,251

Excess (deficiency)
of revenue over
expenditures 1,805 - 30,295 -

Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in - - - .
Transfers out - - - -
Transfers to component units - - - -

Total other financing
sources and uses - - - -

Net change in
fund balances 1,805 - 30,295 -

Fund balances,
beginning of year (1,905) - - _

Fund balances, end of year $ - $ - $ 30,285 $ -
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Bureau of Minibus Minibus Historic
Justice Byrne grant grant preservation SMPC
2008 grant 2009 2009 2010 grant trust
. -8 -8 -8 -3 -
25,171 101,520 21,946 29,801 - 12,061
450 - 14,415 11,420 1,500 -
25,621 101,520 36,361 41,221 1,500 12,081
25,621 62,418 - - - -
- - 36,375 41,672 - -
- - - - 1,500 -
25,621 62,418 36,375 41,672 1,600 -
- 39,102 (14) (451) - 12,061
- 39,102 {14} (451) - 12,061
- - - - - 94,595
- 39,102 3 {14) $ (451} 3 - $ 106,656




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Revenue:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
fnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community services

Totat expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
of revenue over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Transfers to component units

Total other financing
sources and uses
Net change in
fund balances

Fund balances,
beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Year ended Decemnber 31, 2009

Total
nonmajor
Municipat special

band revenue funds

3 - $ 1,670,316
- 2,928,231

- 230,558

136 33,815

- 204,974

136 5,067,895

- 586,026

- 1,683,817

- 880,759

17,241 467,380

- 1,085,548

17,241 4,703,630
(17,105) 364,265
18,500 852,223
- (45,285)
- {1,068,892)
18,500 {262,654)
1,385 101,611
17,954 3,599,542

3 19,348 $ 3,701,153
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2008

Total
Sales tax Sales tax nonmajor
series A series B debt service
debt service debt service funds
Expenditures:
Current:
Debt service:
Principal $ 3,640,000 $ - $ 3,640,000
Interest and commissians 88,277 - 88,277
Total expenditures 3,728,277 - 3,728,277
Excess of
expenditures
over revenue (3,728,277) - (3,728,277)
Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in 6,467,471 - 6,467,471
Transfers out (3,5635,282) {(400,237) (3,935,519)
Total other financing
sources and uses 2,932,188 (400,237) 2,531,952
Net change in fund
balances (796,088) {(400,237) {1,186,325)
Fund balances,
beginning of year 796,088 400,237 1,196,325

Fund balances, end of year 3 - 3 - 3 -
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Year ended December 31, 2008

Special events Total
center and nonmajor
Capital GO bonds GO bonds Casino capital
improvement 2007 2008 infrastructure projecis funds
Revenue:
Taxes $ 257,651 $ - $ - % - $ 257,651
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 40,429 - - - 40,429
Public safety 5000 - - - 5,00C
Public works 88,421 3,393,923 349,482 - 3,831,826
Culture and recreation 283,062 - - 4,327,059 4,620,111
Community services 69,090 - - - 69,090
Total expenditures 495,892 3,383,023 349,482 4,327,059 8,566,456
Excess of expenditures
over revenue {238,341} {3,393,923) {349,482} (4,327,059) (8,308,805)
Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in 100,000 565,000 - 4,327 059 4,992 059
Net change in fund balances (138,341) (2,828,923) {349,482) - {3.316,746)
Fund balances, beginning of year 169,441 3,058,057 356,480 - 3,613,078
Fund balances, end of year 3 61,100 $ 229,134 $ 6,988 $ - $ 297232
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor
and City Commissioners
Dodge City, Kansas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dodge City, Kansas, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of Dodge City's basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 30, 2010. Our report
was modified to include a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of the
Dodge City Public Library and the Dodge City-Ford County Development Corporation were
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Dodge City's internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dodge City’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Dodge City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will net be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be a material weakness, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that
we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, as item
2009-1. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Dodge City's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The City of Dodge City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of
Dodge City's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the governing

body, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Kennady W Ke & Compang oLLP

August 30, 2010
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WIiTH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayaor
and City Commisstioners
Dodge City, Kansas

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Dodge City, Kansas, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB})
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for
the year ended December 31, 2009. The City of Dodge City's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance
based on our audit.

The City of Dodge City’'s basic financial statements include the operations of the Housing
Authority of Dodge City, which expended $931,416 in federal awards which is not included
in the schedule during the year ended December 31, 2009. Our audit described below, did
not include the operations of the Housing Authority of Dodge City because they engaged
other auditors to perform an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Dodge City, Kansas complied, in all material respects, with the

requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for
the year ended December 31, 2008
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internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City of Dodge City, Kansas, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or emplioyees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the governing
body, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Konnedy W Koo & Compang LoLP

August 30, 2010
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended December 31, 2009

Federal grantor/ Federa Pass-through Expenditures
pass-through grantor/ CFDA grantor's of federal
pregram litle number number awards
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct program:
Byrne Grant 16.580 09-0J-BX-0103 § 24687
Byrne Grant 16.580 2009-5B-89-0632 52,418
BJA Grant 16.744 2008-GP-CX-0023 25,171
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership 16.607 - 2,541
Totat U.S. Department of Justice 114,817
1.8, Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Administration
Direct programs:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106
Slurry Seal and Lighting 3-20-0017-1¢ 30,750
Airport Master Plan Update 3-20-G017-20 34,385
Airport Rescue and Firefighting Building 3-20-0017-21 13,182
Airport Rescue and Firefighting Vehicte 3-20-0017-22 15,675
Airport Rescue and Firefighting Building 3-20-0017-23 1,188,263
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,282,235
U.S. Depattment of Transportation
Passed through Kansas Department
of Transportation;
Formula Grants for other than Urbanized Areas 20.509
Mini-Bus Grant 2008-2009 - 14,875
Mini-Bus Grant 2009-2010 - 20,054
Alcohal Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention
incentive Grants 20.601
Impaired Driving Deterrence Program {DUI) - . 6,742
Total U.S. Department of Transporiation 41,671
Total federal awards $..1438723

Note: The schedule of expenditures of federal awards was prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF DODGE CITY KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended December 31, 2009

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1.

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements of the City of Dodge City, Kansas.

One significant deficiency relating to the audit of the financial statements is
reported in the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of
Dodge City, Kansas, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the

City of Dodge City, Kansas expresses an unqualified opinion on all major
programs.

The audit discloses no audit findings relating to major programs that the auditor
is required to report.

The programs tested as a major program included:

Airport Improvement Program CFDA 20.106
The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.
The City of Dodge City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.
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CITY OF DODGE CITY KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended December 31, 2009
B. FINDINGS~FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
2009-1 Proposed Audit Adjustments
Condition: During the course of the audit, correcting entries were proposed in the
areas of long-term debt and deferred revenue. Correcting entries were required to
properly state deferred bond issuance costs, accrued interest payable and to transfer
debt service reserves from the project fund to the debt service fund.

Criteria. Internal controls should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that
long-term debt and deferred revenue are properly recorded.

Effect. Adjustments were necessary after the audit was started.
Recommendation; We recommend that personnel review the general ledger after
year-end adjustments are made for completeness. The review process will provide
additional assurance that deferred revenue, jong-term debt and debt related items are
reported accurately.
Response: City personnel will review the general ledger after year-end adjustments
are made for completeness. The City will comply with the recommendation.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS--MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None noted.
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